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About
NAEEM Holding for Investments (NAEEM) 
is a dually listed company on the Egyptian 
Stock Exchange (EGX: NAHO EY) and 
Dubai Financial Market (DFM: NAHO-DU) 
with investments in excess of USD 300Mn. 
NAEEM is a Middle East and North Africa 
(MENA) full-fledged investment banking 
group with diversified investments among the 
banking, real estate and industrial sectors.

Originally based in Cairo, Egypt, NAEEM has 
succeeded to mark success stories in different 
markets such as Egypt, United Arab Emirates 
and Saudi Arabia, where it currently operates 
from 11 offices across Egypt and UAE. Cap-
italizing on its expertise, proven track record 
and 300 professionals combined experience, 
NAEEM prides itself at having a wide ME-
NA-based network of high net worth individ-
uals and institutional investors. 

NAEEM has a diversified offering of financial 
services including investment banking ser-
vices, securities’ brokerage, asset management 
and research.
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Our Business Offering

Securities’ Brokerage

With a wide spectrum of execution capabilities covering Egypt, GCC, USA and 
Europe, NAEEM Securities’ Brokerage is ranked among the top 10 perform-
ing brokerage houses in Egypt, serving the Middle East from UAE and serving 
international markets in collaboration with SAXO Bank and third party agree-
ments with trusted partners in other countries. 

NAEEM brokerage has a total of 7 branches across Egypt. NAEEM Shares and 
Bonds, which has been restructured under Etihad Capital- NAEEM group’s 
investment arm in the UAE, operates through 2 branches across Dubai and Abu 
Dhabi.

Our wide base of clientele includes local and foreign institutions and retail cli-
ents, high net worth individuals, various types of funds as well as family offices. 

In addition to traditional and online trading, NAEEM Brokerage offers funda-
mental and technical research analysis covering various sectors across the re-
gion. Other services include margin trading, custody and book-keeping services. 

During Q4-17, Etihad Capital added international markets services offering a 
wider range of tradable asset classes and investment instruments & markets in 
collaboration with SAXO Bank.

Investment Banking

NAEEM Investment Banking executed total transactions value of USD 1.4B 
since inception. NAEEM’s Investment Banking is considered the primary gate 
for executing private and public funding transactions for both NAEEM Group’s 
own investments and NAEEM’s clientele investments. Managed by a group of 
prominent and highly experienced professionals, the Investment Banking divi-
sion has advised on various strategic transactions covering equity capital mar-
kets, mergers and acquisitions advisory, debt capital markets and Islamic finance 
advisory. 

Possessing a combination of advisory and strategic placement powers high-
lighted through its origination and quality execution across different industries, 
NAEEM investment banking arm achieved superior rates of return under clear-
ly formulated strategies for NAEEM Group as well as its wide base of clientele 
across the MENA region

Asset management

NAEEM Asset Management has proven success stories for a wide base of its cli-
ents in various geographies across the MENA region and Europe. During 2017, 
NAEEM Misr Islamic Fund (NMIF) was recognized for its 35.7% annual return 
ranking it among the top three best performing Islamic funds in the  
Egyptian market.

With an objective to achieve competitive returns, NAEEM Asset Management 
uses both conventional and sharia compliant investment strategies and continu-
ously develops and tailors offerings catering for a variety of clients’ needs, ap-
proaches and risk appetites.

NAEEM’s Asset Management operations are currently conducted through two 
wholly owned subsidiaries, NAEEM Financial Investments and recently ac-
quired AT Financial Investments.

NAEEM’s client base includes national and multinational institutions, differ-
ent fund types, family offices, high net worth individuals as well as retail clients 
through open ended funds.

Securities Research

Headed by a team of experienced analysts with global and emerging markets 
expertise, NAEEM’s research department covers all major sectors with substan-
tial exposure towards the MENA region and passively covers listed stocks in 
London and New York.

On a quarterly basis, our Research department publishes close to 300 English 
and Arabic research notes; accessible freely to NAEEM clientele base.
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Smart Villages Development 
and Management Company 
(SVC)

Adding to its real estate portfolio, 
NAEEM had acquired a minority stake 
in Smart Villages Development and 
Management Company (SVC) in 2007. 
In 2016, NAEEM increased its stake to 
reach c. 17.76% directly and indirectly. 

SVC was founded in November 2001 
as a Public-Private-Partnership (PPP) 
investment to establish and manage a 
branded chain of technology clusters 
and business parks as well as variety 
of other products in Cairo, Damietta 
and Alexandria. SVC owns 97,000 sqm 
of vacant land in Cairo and Damietta 
in addition to 22,949 sqm of BUA in 
Cairo. The company has currently 3 
projects: Smart Village Cairo, Smart 
Village Damietta, and Smart Village Al-
exandria (coming soon). Smart Village 
Cairo currently accommodates mul-
tinational and local companies, gov-
ernmental and financial organizations, 
educational institutions and research & 
development centers all of which share 
the sophisticated state of the art infra-
structure and a beautifully designed 
greenery landscape.

REACAP Financial Investments (REACAP)

REACAP Financial investment company NAEEM Holding’s 
real estate investment vehicle – is a publicly listed company on 
the Egyptian Stock Exchange since 2011 with a paid up capital 
of EGP 531Mn.

REACAP’s current investments include more than 0.52Mn 
square meters of land plots in Giza and Marsa Alam suited for 
business parks and touristic projects as well as 17,000 sqm of 
BUA in Smart Village, one the most prestigious office parks in 
Egypt and the Middle East. 

In Q4-17, REACAP’s subsidiary, SVREICO launched LINX 
Business Park, the first integrated complex business park in 
west Cairo. The project spans across a land area of 3,000 sqm 
and BUA of 12,000 sqm and caters to small and medium en-
terprises offering office space starting from 70 sqm. LINX also 
includes retail space approximating 20% of total BUA. REA-
CAP successfully sold over 70% of project LINX by the end of 
2017. REACAP plans to launch its second integrated business 
park as well as other projects in 2018.

Arab Sweeteners Company (ASC)

In 2013, NAEEM has eyed the supply/demand shortage in 
sugar and sugar substitutes in the Egyptian market, and has 
therefore decided to launch a company named Arab Sweeten-
ers Company for the production of high fructose corn syrup. 

NAEEM is establishing the biggest wet corn milling plant in 
the Middle East, consolidated under NAEEM in a standalone 
subsidiary, Arab Sweeteners Company (ASC). The wet corn 
milling facility is built to produce a variety of products mainly 
High Fructose Corn Syrup (HFCS), a natural sweetener made 
out of milled corn crops which is used mainly in soft drinks 
such as carbonated drinks and juices as well as bakeries and 
confectionaries, in addition to starch and glucose. The product 
mix also includes by-products such as gluten meal, gluten feed 
and corn crude oil.

NAEEM 
Proprietary 
Investments

Egyptian Gulf Bank (EGBank)

Out of NAEEM’s belief in diversifica-
tion and confidence in Egypt’s banking 
sector, NAEEM acquired a 10% stake 
in Egyptian Gulf Bank (EGBank). EG-
Bank ranked 20th among Forbes Mid-
dle East’s top listed companies/banks 
during FY17. 

The bank is listed on the Egyptian 
Stock Exchange (EGBE.CA) and is 
traded in USD, which provides its 
shareholders with security against local 
currency depreciation. 

EGBank has a domestic network of 
49 branches and is a member of the 
COMESA Bankers’ Association and 
International Finance Incorporation. 
EGBank was established in October 
1981 with a license to conduct a full 
range of commercial banking services 
in both Egyptian pounds and foreign 
currencies including conventional  
activities as well as full Islamic  bank-
ing services.



Message from
the
Chairman

Message from
the
CEO
As we build on our capabilities to create a broader regional Group , NAEEM is 
soon to celebrate the dual listing of its shares in Dubai Financial Markets (“DFM”) 
besides it’s listing in EGX. We pride ourselves in being the first dually listed share 
originating from Cairo to DFM, which opens more venues for exit and entry of 
investors freely into NAEEM’s shares. 

Our operating results for the year reflect healthy margins despite of not catching 
up with 2016 figures, as we remove currency translation effects during the flotation 
year 2016 to normalize results. Our Shariah compliant fund ranks third locally, 
our brokerage house remains among the top 10 players and our advisory services 
business reaches a more diversified client base. 

NAEEM continued to broaden its services offerings via the launch of its 
international desk in UAE, white labeling SAXO bank platform. We are actively 
unlocking value from our real estate investments 
which we expect to ripen even more in 2018 
impacting our balance sheets with dividends, sales 
and rental revenues. 

We remain positive about Egypt’s economic 
enviroment and continue to pursue a regional 
growth strategy.

The year 2017 was a crucial year of delivery in our regional strategy to continue 
growing a regional one stop financial services house. In a changing operating 
environment, we have maintained our healthy capital structure and a low 
leveraged base, expanded our services offering and footprint, while delivering 
profitable growth. Our business is founded on trust and we remain committed to 
acting professionally and prudently towards our stakeholders. We recognize the 
importance of disclosures and transparency and starting 2018 we will be under the 
auspices of two highly recognized capital market regulators in Egypt and Dubai.

We have a thorough understanding of corporate responsibility as a regional 
Investment Bank, and our responsibility towards our stakeholders extends beyond 
banking through effective governance structures, and a rigorous compliance 
framework. We maintain an active dialogue with regulators, policymakers and 
stakeholders aiming at enhancing the profession’s standards as a whole.

Chairman

Hussein Shobokshi

Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman

Youssef El Far
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4% ESOP

5% TRADING
INVESTMENTS

14% WORKING
INVESTMENTS

16% LONG TERM 
INVESTMENTS

1% FIXED ASSETS

23% OTHER ASSETS

18% REAL ESTATE ASSETS

19% EGYPTIAN GULF BANK

NAEEM Group Consolidated Total Assets 
Breakdown - Dec FY17

USD 12.4 Mn

Consolidated Operating  
Revenues in 2017

USD 2.9 Mn

Consolidated EBITDA  
in 2017

USD 1.0 Mn

Net Income after  
minority interests

6.0%
Consolidated Total Debt  

to Total Assets
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1 Includes custody revenues, margin trading income and NAEEM’s trading portfolio 
2 Adjusted for FX gains of USD 5.1Mn in 2016

In 2017, NAEEM’s consolidated operating revenues 
topped USD 12.4Mn (EGP 221.3Mn) compared to 
USD 29.8Mn (EGP 291.5) in 2016. 

Business lines represented 43% of total operating rev-
enues versus investments’ contribution of 57%.

Brokerage business line was the biggest contributor 
to operating revenues topping USD 4.1Mn versus 
USD 5.9Mn a year earlier with a drop of 29.5%. This 
drop was purely attributed to reporting currency 
translation effect as the business line grew at 28% in 
EGP terms powered by increasing stock market activ-
ity during the year.

NAEEM’s operations and investments1 was the 
second largest contributor representing 31% of total 
operating revenues equivalent to USD 3.9Mn, grow-
ing 39% (152% in EGP terms) compared to 2016. 

As for REACAP, after selling its remaining residen-
tial units in 2017 and realizing total revenues of USD 
3.6Mn during the year, the company has successfully 
launched during the fourth quarter a new office park/
commercial project in Smart Village with a Built up 
Area of 12,000 sqm. Total project’s sales till Decem-
ber 2017 amounted to EGP 100Mn out of a total esti-
mated sales of EGP 244Mn. Moreoever, the project’s 
commercial area is expected to yield recurring rental 
income for REACAP.

NAEEM’s EBITDA and net profits after minority interests in 2017 recorded 
USD 2.9Mn & USD 1.0Mn, respectively; compared to USD 2.2² Mn & USD 
2.1Mn in 2016.

As of December 2017, NAEEM’s consolidated total assets stood at c. USD 
298Mn compared to USD 292Mn a year earlier. Total shareholders’ equity 
excluding minority interests topped USD 231.8Mn compared to USD 221.8Mn 
in December 2016. 

 Around 94% of these assets are financed via shareholders’ equity. The Group’s 
consolidated total debt stood at USD 17.9Mn utilized mainly to finance 
NAEEM’s investment portfolio and brokerage business line.

NAEEM’s assets are constituted mainly of real estate investments (18.19% 
of total assets) in addition to proprietary investment in the banking sector 
(18.63% of total assets) through 9.76% stake in the Egyptian Gulf Bank (EGB).

Better EGP operational results for business 
lines and NAEEM’s operations1 & Investments 

in 2017, yet pulled down by lingering currency 
translation. Positive outlook for NAEEM real 

estate business as unrecognized sales by 
REACAP are currently loading for  

future deliveries.
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Securities Brokerage

In FY17, securities brokerage revenues grew 
at 28% YOY topping EGP 73.8Mn through 
NAEEM’s two brokerage arms (NAEEM 
Brokerage & Al Tawfeek Brokerage) on the 
back of increased market turnover by 48% 
compared to 2016. 

NAEEM Brokerage ranked 7th among bro-
kerage houses in Egypt in terms of turnover 
with a market share of 3.8% equivalent to 
total executions of EGP 21.3Bn. 

Excluding over the counter deals, brokerage 
business ranked 6th among brokerage houses 
with a market share of 4.2%.

Asset Management

NAEEM’s total Assets under Management 
(AUMs) stood at USD 346.5Mn as of 31st of 
December 2017.

Despite a couple of redemptions that took 
place in Q4–17, total listed equities AUM 
grew at 18% during the last quarter of 
the year. 

NAEEM Misr Islamic Fund (NMIF) 
ended FY-17 with a NAV of EGP 212.7 up 
35.7% Y-o-Y and ranked among the top 3  
best performing Islamic funds in the Egyp-
tian market.

Investment Banking

NAEEM Investment Banking division con-
tributed 11% to business lines’ consolidated 
revenues on the back of advisory services 
offered to clients operating in real estate and 
media sectors. 

NAEEM Investment Banking also offered 
advisory services to related companies – 
members of NAEEM group - related to inter-
nal restructuring, feasibility of new projects, 
monitoring and valuing existing investments 
yet those fees are excluded from NAEEM’s 
consolidated revenues.

Research

In FY17, NAEEM Research issued 1,061 re-
ports. The department offers a wide range of 
products covering both fundamental as well 
as technical research.

During the year, research reports covered all 
major sectors in the MENA region includ-
ing real estate, petrochemicals, oil & gas, 
building materials, telecommunications and 
financial services.
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7 th

Ranked Brokerage  
House in 2017 Based on  

Value Traded

35 %

Growth in Commissions  
income in 2017

9
Branches across  
Egypt and UAE

USD 1.52 Bn

Total Value of  
Executed Brokerage  

Transactions In Egypt  
and UAE

SECURITIES’ 
BROKERAGE
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NAEEM Brokerage Egypt (NBE)
NAEEM Brokerage Egypt (NBE) was first established as a Joint Stock Compa-
ny (JSC) under the name Nile Investments in 1997, which was then changed to 
the current name NAEEM Brokerage in 2006. NBE currently operates via eight 
branches across Egypt

NAEEM Brokerage covers diverse markets including Egypt, the GCC, the US 
and Europe.

Etihad Capital

Etihad Capital is a private joint stock company incorporated under Law No. 8 of 
1984, operating under a trade license issued by the Abu Dhabi municipality and 
a license issued by the Central Bank of the UAE in accordance with Union Law 
No. 10, as amended. The company’s principle activities are investment manage-
ment and financial consultancy services. During 2017, Etihad capital acquired 
NAEEM Shares and Bonds thus adding securities’ brokerage to its services. Lat-
er in Q4-17 Etihad Capital added International markets services offering a wider 
range of asset classes and markets in collaboration with SAXO Bank.

NAEEM holding currently holds directly and indirectly 49% of Etihad Capital.

AT Brokerage

AT Brokerage was founded in 2007 as the first Egyptian company that offers 
Securities Brokerage services in compliance with Shariaa standards. NAEEM 
acquired AT Brokerage in November 2016.

Services Offered

The brokerage business line has a wide base of sizable investors offering them a 
wide range of services from cash markets to plain vanilla securities. On behalf of 
its clients, NBE also trades GDRs and ADRs (issuing and cancellations) across 
the world.

• Margin Trading

• Online Trading & DMA

• Custody and Book-keeping Services

• Equity Analysis

• Macro-Economic Analysis

• Technical Analysis 

In Q4-17, Etihad Capital launched SAXO Bank Platform allowing clients to 
customize their trading environment across multiple screens and providing real 
time update of their current portfolio valuation, available accounts’ margins 
collateral, net exposures in every given instrument traded, margin requirements 
and net free equity available for new positions.

Among these products:

Ranked as one of the top brokerage houses in Egypt, 
NAEEM has physical presence in Egypt and the UAE 
with executions spanning across the globe.

PRODUCTS

Equities & ETFs

FX Spot

Bonds

Options

Futures

CFDs
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Brokerage Business Timeline
1997: Nile Investments was established; ranked among the top 10 companies 
focusing mainly on local Institutions and high-net-worth individuals.

2004: The executive team decided to expand the Brokerage division regionally 
by setting up NAEEM Shares & Bonds in the UAE. Our operations are current-
ly supported by 2 branches.

2006: Nile investments acquired by NAEEM Holding and changes its name to 
NAEEM Brokerage Egypt.

2008: Realizing the potential of being a full- fledged regional investment 
house, the group decided to expand to other countries in the region offering 
Qatar, Kuwait and Oman trading via third parties.

2009: the group decided to cater to Institutional and high-net-worth clients in 
the European and US markets through third parties- currently foreign markets 
activities are resumed through our UAE arm, NSB regulated by Securities & 
Commodities Authority in the UAE.

2016: following the firm wide vision, NAEEM Holding seized the opportunity 
to grow inorganically and acquired 100% of AT Brokerage in November 2016.

2017: Etihad capital acquired NAEEM Shares and bonds thus the group con-
solidated its UAE operations under one entity. Later in Q4-17, Etihad Capital 
added International markets services offering a wider range of asset classes and 
markets in collaboration with SAXO Bank.

2017 Operational Performance
The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) raised the benchmark overnight de-
posit and lending rates twice during FY17 ending the year at 18.75% and 19.75%, 
respectively; EGX30 was up 5% Q-o-Q during Q1-17 while growth slowed down 
in the following two quarters. The market picked up again in Q4-17 recording an 
8% growth Q-o-Q on the back of improved investment sentiments namely after 
the CBE removed capital control on deposits & withdrawals of foreign curren-
cies for importers in Nov-17 coupled with the improvement in tourism revenues 
and domestic gas production. EGX30 was up 22% Y-o-Y during FY17.

In 2016, NAEEM Brokerage Egypt (NBE) underwent a series of measures to 
improve transaction execution and increase its client base, the benefits of the 
measures taken were evident for the company as it began to climb up the rank-
ing board throughout the year. 

NAEEM resumed its strive to improve its brokerage operations and introduce 
new products and services during 2017 as manifested in Etihad capital collabo-
ration with SAXO Bank. During 2017, NBE and AT Brokerage combined mar-
ket share from brokerage activity in Egyptian equities totaled 3.8%, ranking it 
7th among brokerage firms in terms of market share and executions.
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2017 Financial Performance
The company reported strong performance in Egypt main market, turnover 
increased by 16% Y-o-Y which translated into higher revenues. Aggregate fees 
and commissions generated from securities brokerage grew 35% Y-o-Y to EGP 
73.8Mn in 2017 owing to an increase in NBE turnover as well as NAEEM’s 
acquisition of AT Brokerage.

During FY17, NBE contributed with 74% of the commissions’ fees while the 
remaining 26% were generated from AT Brokerage. Average daily commissions 
increased by 35% Y-o-Y to reach EGP 302K.

Egypt Brokerage Average 
Daily Commissions (000 EGP)

Combined Commissions 
Income (Mn EGP)

Egypt Brokerage Average 
Daily Commissions per 

Quarter (000 EGP)
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Readership Composition by Type

Sector Coverage

Readership Composition by Geography

Research Overview
NAEEM Research, which falls under NAEEM Brokerage Egypt, offers tailored 
research, regular macro-overview reports, in addition to management interac-
tion and on the-ground support for clients. 

NBE’s regional Sell Side Research prides itself on offering NAEEM clients 
in-depth analysis of regional markets, asset classes and companies in order to 
provide them with the best tools possible to invest and successfully undertake 
business in the region.

Research reports cover the following sectors: real estate, industrial, financial 
services, telecommunication among others; 84% of NAEEM research readers 
pertain to buy-side clients – indicating significant interest from portfolio manag-
ers and a large untapped client base. Readership is dominated by North America 
followed by MENA region and Europe.

Products Offered
The department offers a wide range of products covering both fundamental as 
well as technical research as follows:

Fundamental Research
• NAEEM News Stand: Daily news update and analysis.

• Macro Reports

• Evaluation Reports

• Initiation/Valuation Reports: In-depth investment analysis  
and valuations.

• First take: Instant analysis and views on company results, ad hoc devel-
opments, management calls and other transactions.

• Spotlights: Ideas-driven, 2-3 Page Company updates.

• Egypt and UAE Macro Monitors: Tracking and analysis of macro trends.

Technical Research
• Egypt Market Pulse – Daily report in both English and Arabic contains 
daily technical analysis for major Indices besides blue chips and the most 
active stocks

• UAE Market Pulse – Daily report in English covers the technical view 
and the forecast for both Dubai and Abu Dhabi stock markets

• Trading Idea Alerts – Reports published both in English and Arabic with 
a spotlight on trading opportunities in the market

• Intraday and medium- to long-term – Ad hoc reports delivered to focus 
on specific opportunities in the market
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FY17 Advisory Revenues by Sector
In FY17, NAEEM Investment banking revenues contributed 11% & 5% to total 
business lines revenues and NAEEM’s operating revenues, respectively. 

These revenues were on the back of advisory services/corporate finance assign-
ments offered to clients operating in real estate and media & advertising sectors.

NAEEM IB offered as well advisory services to NAEEM Holding and its subsid-
iaries related to: 

• Listing NAEEM Holding on Dubai Financial Market (DFM) to be the first 
Egyptian company to be dually listed on EGX & DFM.

• Monitoring and valuing current investments.

• Studying new investment opportunities  
and projects. 

• Investments & Organization restructuring.

 
FY18 Outlook
Leveraging on NAEEM Group MENA presence, the Investment Banking di-
vision has generated a diversified pipeline during FY17. NAEEM IB continued 
to pitch new clients across several sectors including: 
education, food & beverage, financial services and 
real estate.

This allowed NAEEM IB to increase the number of 
transactions in FY18 pipeline to a total of 9 trans-
actions separated into External Clients Advisory 
Services and NAEEM Group Proprietary  
investments advisory.
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2017 Operational Performance
Continuing into 2017 and post the Pound devaluation in November 2016, the 
EGX was still gaining momentum on the back of positive investor sentiment 
ending the year as the best performing market in the Middle East with the EGX 
30 Index posting a 22% growth followed by Kuwait and Bahrain increasing 
11% and 9%, respectively. This growth was spurred by foreign interest in Egypt 
which was evident as net foreign inflows totaled EGP 7.5Bn with foreigners ac-
counting for approximately 56% of the 6 IPOs witnessed in 2017. Furthermore, 
overall trading value in the market jumped as average daily value traded was up 
40% to EGP 1.03Bn from EGP 741Mn in 2016. As a result, the EGX market cap 
surpassed EGP 800Bn for the first time since the global financial crisis in 2008.

On the macroeconomic front, the Central Bank of Egypt hiked interest rates 
twice during the year by a total of 400 bps to reach 18.75% and 19.75%, respec-
tively; nevertheless the EGX neglected the decisions as investors were more 
focused on positive news stemmed from the IMF and World Bank regarding 
economic reforms and the disbursement of the loans coupled with the improved 
sentiment after the CBE removed capital control on deposits & withdrawals of 
foreign currencies for importers. 

NAEEM’s Egypt based AUMs were pressured to the downside as major re-
demptions were seen during Q4-17, yet this year still marked a positive year for 
NAEEM Misr Islamic Fund (NMIF) in terms of performance as it ended 2017 
up 35.7%; ranking it among the top 3 best performing Islamic funds in 2017. 
NMIF recorded four consecutive quarters of inclines with Q3-17 witnessing the 
best quarterly performance posting an 18% growth. The EGX100 benchmark 
index gained 80%.

Al Baraka Bank Fund witnessed net redemptions during 2017 however the fund 
ended the year on a positive note as it recorded a 26.3% growth.

As of December 2017, the Asset Management clients’ base was 73% individual 
clients and 27% institutional clients.

2017 Financial Performance
Management & performance fees grew 28% in 2017 to reach USD 641.9K from 
USD 501.4K in 2016; in EGP terms, fees increased a whopping 371%. During 
Q4-17, fees were up 338% Q-o-Q and 5% Y-o-Y on the back of a surge in perfor-
mance fees, contributing to 87% of overall fees during FY 2017.

NAEEM Asset Management offerings and potential 
offerings include conventional and Sharia Compliant 
portfolios and funds in Egypt, UAE, Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia and the MENA region.
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SVREICO
SVREICO, 68.35% owned by REACAP, owns the Office real estate assets in Smart 
Village, both buildings and vacant land. SVREICO is considered to be a platinum 
developer in the office spaces sector in Smart Village with previous track record 
developing 5 office buildings on a total footprint of 7,500 sqm. Current available 
BUA for sale and/or rent is approximately 10,350 sqm while vacant land amounts 
to 14,500 sqm; 4,500 sqm is in phase 1 and 10,000 sqm is in phase 2.

NAREI
NAREI owns two companies whom are active in different sectors: Belady for Tour-
ism Development which operates in the touristic sector, owns a land plot in excess 
of 500,000 sqm in Marsa Alam, Red Sea Governorate; and Nile Palm for Real 
Estate Development, which is a joint venture between NAREI and Palm Hills for 
Development with a 49% and 51% share, respectively; operating in the Commercial 
and residential Sectors.

2017 Highlights
As the year kicked-off, REACAP was able to complete the sale of the remaining 
residential units in Casa and Palm Parks Projects located in the 6th of October city. 
During 2H-17, momentum began to pick up as SVREICO offloaded a previously 

owned office building and as REACAP took the initiative to create a new business 
model in Smart Village that would cater to a different type of clientele.

Unlike the current office spaces available, REACAP’s subsidiary SVREICO suc-
cessfully launched LINX Business Park as a pilot project; a park offering office 
space to small and medium enterprises with areas starting from 70 sqm. The pro-
ject spans across a land area of 3,000 sqm, with BUA totaling 12,000 sqm. LINX 
will be the first of its kind in Smart Village which offers a mixed use development as 
80% of the BUA will be office spaces and the remaining 20% will be retail space.

REACAP has succeeded in creating new market demand through providing small 
space offices, which proved to be more appealing to potential buyers. This new 
strategy has made LINX a prime project as REACAP has succeeded in selling c. 
70% of LINX project off-plan based on the engineering design.

2017 Financial Performance
Despite the slow start to 2017, REACAP ended the year reporting operating reve-
nues of c. EGP 64.2Mn driven by the completed sale of residential units in addition 
to the sale of the administrative building by SVREICO. Revenues generated by 
units sold accounted for the lion’s share with 94% contribution to total operating 
revenues while the remaining 6% were generated from rental income. Income from 
rent jumped 87% in 2017 on the back of the positive impact from the Egyptian 
Pound floatation. Regarding profitability, REACAP reports after tax Net Income of 
EGP 9.3Mn in 2017.

REACAP’s total assets grew 9.7% in 2017 to reach EGP 842.8Mn from EGP 
768.2Mn supported by the increase in receivables from the sales in LINX. Total ac-
counts receivables jumped 180% to reach EGP 84.4Mn in 2017 from EGP 30.2Mn 
a year earlier.

Going forward, REACAP will continue to follow its successful strategy in invest-
ing specifically in the Business Parks sector. REACAP intends to launch several 
new projects in the upcoming years in both phase 1 and phase 2 in Smart Village 
that would entitle it to BUA in excess of 64,000 sqm. After the success witnessed in 
LINX, REACAP is currently on track to replicate the business model in its availa-
ble land plots. Moreover, Belady will begin the construction phase concerning the 
Marsa Alam land plot.

REACAP Financial Investment Co - NAEEM Holding’s 
real estate investment vehicle - is a publicly listed 
company on the Egyptian Stock Exchange with a 
paid up capital of EGP 531Mn. REACAP owns over 
0.52Mn sqm of land plots in Giza & Marsa Alam 
through its several subsidiaries.

Moreover, REACAP and its subsidiaries own c. 11,200 
sqm of BUA in Smart Village, one of the premium office 
parks in the Middle East; which is located in the 6th of 
October city.
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Overview of EGBank:
EGBank was established in October 1981 with a license to conduct a full range 
of commercial banking services in both Egyptian Pounds and Foreign curren-
cies. The bank is listed on the Egyptian Stock Exchange and traded in USD. 

With strong growth potential EGBank currently operates via 49 different 
branches across several governorates in Egypt including Cairo, Giza, Alexan-
dria, Port Said and Mansoura growing from only 34 branches in 2016. 

EGBank is a member of the COMESA bankers’ association and international 
finance incorporation.

The bank offers a wide range of commercial activities including:

• Documentary credits

• Foreign exchange

• Capital markets

• Corporate finance

• Correspondent banking

• Equity investments

• International settlements

• Internet banking

• Syndicated loans

2017 Financial Performance:
EGBank witnessed a positive performance in 2017 as interest income on loans 
recorded a total of EGP 6.7 Bn increasing from EGP 3.5Bn in 2016 recording a 
growth of 88% owing to the interest rate hikes coupled with the growth in the 
bank’s loan portfolio. On the other hand, Cost of deposits increased at a higher 
rate by 133% to record a total of EGP 5.2Bn in 2017 growing from EGP 2.2Bn in 
2016. As a result, net interest income increased by 14.4% to record a total of EGP 
1.5Bn in 2017 in comparison to EGP 1.3Bn in 2016.

Net Interest Margin stood at 3.5% in 2017 versus 4.3% in 2016 as net interest 
income grew by only 14.4% while average earning assets grew at a higher rate of 
43% during the same period.

Net income from fees and commissions recorded a growth of 32% backed main-
ly by the increase in commissions and fees from credit banking services as it 
increased from EGP 229Mn in 2016 to EGP 322Mn in 2017 recording  
 growth of 41%. 

General and administrative expenses grew 22% to reach EGP 787Mn in 2017 
versus EGP 646Mn in 2016 attributed mainly to the increase in wages and sala-
ries in line with the bank’s expansion plan as it rolled out 15 new branches across 
the country. Wages and salaries stood at EGP 277Mn in 2017 growing from 
EGP 196Mn in 2016. 
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Regarding provisions, the total impairment charges for credit losses amounted 
to a total of EGP 233Mn in 2017 representing only 1% of the total loans out-
standing in 2017 compared to a percentage of 2% in 2016. 

Nevertheless, EGBank’s bottom line was up 25% reported at EGP 500Mn in 
2017 versus EGP 402Mn in 2016. 

EGBank’s total assets reported a growth of 24% in 2017 to EGP 56Bn compared 
to EGP 45Bn in 2016 backed by the 26% increase in the bank’s loan portfolio to 
EGP 24Bn as of December 2017 from EGP 19Bn in December 2016. The bank 
witnessed a significant improvement in its asset quality as NPL/GL stood at 
1.04% versus 2.19% a year earlier.

Meanwhile, Customer deposits grew 14.3% in 2017 to reach EGP 46Bn from 
EGP 41Bn in 2016 translating into loans-to-deposits ratio of 52% compared to 
47% as of December 2016. This ratio is slightly higher than industry norms as 
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average total loans-to-deposit ratio of all Egyptian banks stood at 44.2% as of 
December 2017. However, with the new CBE regulations and the EGP 500Mn 
support loan provided to EGBank by the CBE, this by turn provides a better 
cushion for the bank. 

In 2017, EGBank issued 26.5Mn bonus shares raising its capital by EGP 
469.5Mn to reach EGP 2.26Bn. Furthermore, as banks in Egypt will be required 
to begin presenting their financial statements in accordance with the IFRS 9 
accounting standards starting from FY 2019 after a trial period with their au-
ditors for FY 2018 financial statements. EGBank increased its reserves by EGP 
200.6Mn in relation to the implementation of IFRS 9 according to the Central 
Bank of Egypt’s circular dated January 28, 2018.

Total loans Total deposits
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Smart Villages Development 
and Management Company 
(SVC) was founded in 
November 2001 as a Public-
Private-Partnership (PPP) 
investment with a mandate 
to establish and manage a 
branded chain of Technology 
cluster and Business parks 
as well as variety of other 
products.

The company has currently 3 
projects: Smart Village Cairo, 
Smart Village Damietta, and 
Smart Village Alexandria 
(coming soon). SVC 
categorizes its brand into 
products and services.

Products
• Smart Villages: a fully operational CIT 
cluster and business park 

• Smart Office: a green business building.

• Smart Zone: designed to meet the spe-
cial needs of small and medium enterprises, 
it offers maximum flexibility in terms of rent 
duration, space and decoration.

• Virtual Offices: provides communica-
tion and address services that allow users to 
reduce traditional office costs while maintain-
ing business professionalism.

Services
• Smart Property: bundle of prod-
ucts for property and facility 
management. 

• Smart Services: transportation, 
event management, catering, housekeep-
ing and maintenance, etc. 

• Smart Vision: it is the sum of ex-
pertise of SVC in creating and managing 
communities, offered as consultancy 
packages. SVC handles all phases of the 
projects from start to finish. 

• Smart Village Institute: imple-
ments training and educational programs 
covering several disciplines directly or 
through well-known training & educa-
tional entities.

• A lburouj: Smart Villages Company 
signed a management agreement with 

UAE’s Capital Group Properties for a 
new Smart Village complex in East Cairo. 
Capital Group Properties finalized the 
design process and is expected to com-
mence construction in Q2-18.

• 2017 Financial Per for mance: 
During FY17, SVC witnessed a 235% 
Y-o-Y increase in total revenues as the 
company posted record revenues of c. 
EGP 914.3Mn, the highest since incep-
tion. This increase is mainly attributed 
to the sale of a building during 2H-17. 
EBITDA surged by 586% Y-o-Y with 
improving EBITDA Margins at 45.1% 
versus 22.1% in FY16. Total assets were 
up 2% to EGP 1.19Bn. 
The revenues from sale of properties and 
services increased during FY17; however, 
revenue from rental activities declined 
due to the removal of rent generated from 
the building that was sold in 2H-17.
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Arab Sweeteners Company (ASC) was established 
in September 2013, as NAEEM’s industrial Subsidiary; 
with the sole purpose of establishing a state of art USD 
145Mn wet corn milling plant, the largest plant in the 
Middle East.  

The plant has a grinding capacity of 1,500 MT of yellow corn daily the produces 
300,000 MT of high fructose corn syrup (HFCS) per annum. 

ÇEMSAN DIŞ TİCARET A.Ş (Çemsan) acts as the project’s EPC Contractor. 
NAEEM takes pride for its selection of Çemsan, a renowned Turkish group 
offering turnkey plants for the production of fructose, starch and glucose across 
the globe since 1988.

All of ASC’s heavy equipment for the project is of European origin. Despite of 
Pound flotation and it’s ripple effects on borrowing costs and imported machin-
ery costs, NAEEM remains committed to the project given inelasticity of the de-
mand and is committed to emulate success of The Who’s who in the investment 
field, through developing new revenue sources to the group.

What is HFCS?
HFCS is a sugar substitute made out of milled corn crops and is used mainly in 
soft drinks such as carbonated drinks and juices as well as bakeries  
and confectionaries.

The most two widely used HFCS types are HFCS-55 & HFCS-42.

• HFCS-55 is composed from 55% fructose and 45% glucose –and mainly 
used in beverage and soft drinks.

• As for HFCS-42, composed from 42% fructose and 58% glucose and 
mainly used in bakeries and confectionaries and that’s versus table sugar 
which is composed from 50% fructose and 50% glucose.

The product mix that is to be extracted from the milled corn can be categorized 
into Main Products and By-Products.

The main products include:

240K MT of HFCS-55

60K MT of HFCS-42

40K MT of Glucose 

40K MT of Starch

The by-products include:

105K MT of Gluten Feed

21K MT of Gluten Meal

11K MT of Crude Corn Oil

Progress to Date:
NAEEM has incorporated a joint stock company under the name of “Arab 
Company for sweeteners” – “The Company” – to own the plant with a paid up 
capital of EGP 100Mn and has bought a 137k sqm land plot located in the 10th 
of Ramadan zone.

An experienced independent management is now on board led by a managing 
director, bringing in 22 years of experience accumulated via working in related 
industrial sectors such as Glucose, starch, sweeteners, papers and poultry. 

The EPC contractor is currently working on the FEED in order to kick off the 
civil works bid. The Company has signed a term sheet & a mandate letter with 
a syndicate of 3 Local banks regarding debt underwriting to finance 65% of the 
project’s investment costs.
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NAEEM’s board of directors
NAEEM’s board of directors consists of one executive member and 6 
non-executive members. With 3 board members from Egypt, 2 from King-
dom of Saudi Arabia, 2 from United Arab Emirates, NAEEM’s board mem-
bers bring in years of experience in the financial field across the MENA 
region. The board is headed by Hussein Shobokshi, as non-executive Chair-
man since June 2016.

Throughout 2017, the board has convened 4 times. On November 14th 2017, 
Mubarak Bin Fahd has joined NAEEM board members, replacing Sahar El 
sallab. 

NAEEM’s corporate governance structure is constantly reviewed to better 
accommodate for the company’s business lines and operations yet adhere to 
the best practices used in the financial sector.

Codes, regulations & principles providing 
a framework to the board and the 
management’s roles and responsibilities

Code of Conduct

NAEEM’s integrity and reputation depend on its ability to do the right 
choice. The Code of Conduct is a collection of rules and policy statements in-
tended to assist the board of directors as well as the management in making 
decisions regarding their conduct related to the firm’s business. The Code is 
based on our fundamental understanding that integrity is vital for NAEEM’s 
sustainable growth.

The Code of Ethical Practice expresses the values and responsibilities that are 
an important aspect of the financial services profession. It is intended to assist 
NAEEM group to act ethically in the performance of their operations and to 
protect the rights and Responsibilities of their clients, different financial servic-
es’ providers as well as the overall society. The Code’s framework provides guid-
ance in areas of common ethical dilemmas, which requires the intervention of 
professional judgment to conclude the best practice on a case by case basis.

Regulatory Relations

NAEEM is regulated by regulatory agencies nationally; including Egyptian 
Stock Exchange (EGX), General Authority For Investment and Free Zones 
(GAFI) & Financial Regulatory Authority (FRA); as well as regionally such as 
Securities and Commodities Authority (SCA), Dubai Financial Market (DFM) 
and Internal Revenue Service (IRS).

NAEEM is committed to building strong ties with regulatory agencies to ensure 
the comprehension and adherence with the dynamic regulatory environment. 
The board and the management have strong commitment to continuously adapt 
and respond to any changes in the legal environment. These regulations include 
insider trading laws as well as management transaction disclosure rules.

Transparency 

The board of directors as well as the management are responsible for clearly 
displaying the regulations governing the company’s activities, and consistently 
evaluating whether these regulations are being implemented by the executive 
management.

Confidentiality 

Each member of the board of directors as well as the management are required 
to maintain the confidentiality of the information generated by the firm’s inter-
nal/external auditors as well as external parties, with the exception of any re-
quired disclosure, mandated by the laws and regulatio

“To set aside one’s prejudices, one’s present needs, 
and one’s own self-interest in making a decision as a 
director for a company is an intellectual exercise that 
takes constant practice. In short, intellectual honesty 
is a journey and not a destination.” - Mervyn King - 
Governor of the Bank of England (King Report)
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Conflict of interest 

The board of directors as well as the management act in the best interests of 
NAEEM’s shareholders. Directors are keen on immediate conflict resolution as 
soon as detected. Board members should submit a comprehensive report to the 
chairman of the board of directors in case any conflict of interest arises (or antici-
pated to arise) with any other board member. 

Corporate Opportunities

Directors are committed to prioritize NAEEM’s interest whenever another cor-
porate opportunity arises. Should any corporate opportunity is identified by a 
board member obtained due to his/her position in the board, he/she should have 
the board’s approval prior taking any personal advantage of that opportunity

Fair trading and proper use of company assets

The rules stated in the company’s main trading policies are the rules that should 
be applied to the trading of the board of directors on the company’s shares. Those 
policies include disclosure requirements governing trading on company shares. 
All directors and managers should safeguard the company’s assets and sustain 
their efficient use. 

 
Corporate Governance Committees 
Executive Committee 

The executive committee is composed of 3 members appointed by NAEEM 
board of directors. The board has assigned this committee to oversee operational 
decisions including investment opportunities, risk management structure of the 
firm, supervising the performance of new expansions/acquisitions among other 
responsibilities related to the NAEEM daily operations. The board convenes 
once a month or more frequently if needed to deal with arising matters. During 
2017, the executive committee monitored closely the fulfillment of the proce-
dures concerning the dual listing on Dubai Financial market.

Compensation Committee

The compensation committee is composed of a minimum of three members 
among the board of directors. The committee meets on a quarterly basis, unless 
needed more frequently. It holds an executive session at least once annually 
headed by NAEEM’s chairman. The main objective of the compensation com-
mittee is to assist the board of directors in performing its duties with respect to 
rewarding the managing director and the executive managers as well as man-
aging the executive reward program. The committee also manages the group’s 
incentives plan.

Risk and Audit Committee

The Risk and Audit Committee is composed of three members, including one 
board member. Throughout 2017, the committee has convened 4 times. The 
committee’s objective is to help the board of directors in controlling and super-
vising NAEEM‘s financial operations. The audit committee focuses mainly on 
ensuring the efficiency of the internal control system, the integrity of the finan-
cial statements, the professionalism and independence of the external auditors, 
as well as the company’s internal audit performance.

The audit Committee reports annually to the board of directors on the evalu-
ation of the external auditor especially with regard to its independence. These 
reports serve as a basis during the nomination of the external auditors. The audit 
committee provides an assessment of the external auditors every three years 
regarding their performance during that period.

Corporate GovernanCe Committees

exeCutive Committee

Compensation Committee risk & audit Committee
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Risk & Compliance
NAEEM’s risk and compliance team consists of 12 members, the risk team 
ensures that overall operational risks are detected and dealt with through ample 
control measures. NAEEM’s compliance team’s main responsibility is to ensure 
that the overall firm’s activities are in compliance with the applicable legal re-
quirements and NAEEM’s internal policies. 

During 2017, the team studied diligently the risk and compliance requirements 
of Dubai Financial markets (DFM) as well as Securities & Commodities Au-
thority (SCA) as mandated by the United Arab Emirates laws and regulations 
prior to NAEEM dual listing on DFM that took place later on March 25th 2018.

Employee compliance

NAEEM has vigorous guidelines and programs, revised annually, to help em-
ployees understand and avoid compliance violations on subjects ranging from 
NAEEM’s code of ethics, and information protection and privacy to anti-money 
laundering and conflicts of interest.

NAEEM’s compliance culture is anchored in the code of ethics. The code under-
lines NAEEM’s core values and principles, our duty to the highest standards of 
ethical and professional conduct. Each year, every employee is required to com-
plete a training and evaluation based on his understanding of NAEEM’s code of 
ethics. 

FATCA compliance

Starting 2014, NAEEM’s compliance team began applying a program leading 
to compliance with the US government’s Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act 
(FATCA). This program is mandatory for all financial institutions worldwide; it 
requires transparency and disclosure of any information concerning American 
clients’ accounts. 

Internal Audit
Throughout 2017, NAEEM’s internal audit has been expanding its functions, 
constantly updating and bringing in a systematic and thorough approach to 
monitor and improve the firm’s performance. 

NAEEM’s internal audit department performs its tasks according to internation-
al standards and the firm’s code of ethics as well as the industry best practices. 

Regulations are changing rapidly to cater for investors and other stakeholders’ 
various needs. Internal auditors deal with issues that are fundamentally im-
portant to the survival and prosperity of any organization, both internal and 
external auditors form a fundamental part of NAEEM’s corporate governance. 
NAEEM’s efforts to enhance the internal audit function continued throughout 
2017, performing more frequent risk-based reviews to enhance audit monitoring 
and ensuring the independence of the internal audit. NAEEM’s internal audit 
reports directly to the audit committee.
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Egyptian Stock ExchangE 
initiativE to Support 
orphanS:
On April 9th 2017, Egyptian Stock 
Exchange (EGX) held its second annual 
orphan day event, targeting fund raising 
for selected orphanages and the pro-
motion of CSR activities across listed 
companies in EGX. NAEEM Holding 
was among the main donors, NAEEM’s 
chairman gave a speech highlighting 
NAEEM’s responsibility towards the 
community and its CSR efforts/activi-
ties during 2017, followed by ringing the 
bell ceremony by her Excellency, min-
ister of investment and international 
cooperation, Dr. Sahar Nasr.

This initiative was held in coordination 
with the Ministry of Social Solidarity to 

CSR 2017 Highlights: 

select the orphanages and identify their 
needs as well as supervise the funds’ 
allocation process. Children from the 
four following orphanages attended the 
event, AL Orman, Resala, Al Amal and 
Bent Misr. 

A team from NAEEM including led by 
vice chairman & Chief Executive Of-
ficer Youssef El far, Chief Investment 
Officer Omnia Kelig met with EGX 
chairman Dr. Mohamed Omran prior 
to the event to discuss how to further 
promote CSR initiatives among listed 
companies and ensure NAEEM’s future 
contributions to the same cause.
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NAEEM Holding has been an active 
participant in Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) activities since its inception, 
contributing in several charity projects and 
fulfilling its role towards the society. 

Driven by its believe in the importance of 
CSR, NAEEM has entered into a partnership 
with Baheya foundation for early detection 
and treatment of breast cancer, this partner-
ship constituted 87% of NAEEM 2017 CSR 
budget, followed by 9% that were dedicated to 
EGX initiative to support orphans while the 
remaining budget was allocated to other medi-
cal and in-kind donations.

partnership with Baheya 
Foundation:
During 2017, NAEEM signed a part-
nership with Baheya Foundation; a 
nonprofit organization founded for 
early detection and treatment of breast 
cancer. NAEEM partnership covers 
both the early detection test costs as 
well as the treatment of current pa-
tients (chemotherapy, radiology and 
surgical procedures). Baheya hospital 
started receiving patients in March 
2015, it is considered Egypt’s first  
specialized hospital in breast 
 cancer treatment. 

Since its inception up to December 
2017 Baheya hospital has received 
40,000 patient, performed 2500 surgi-
cal procedure free of charge, admitted 
2100 and 1500 patient for chemother-
apy and radiation sessions respectively.

2018 outlook: 
NAEEM’s board of directors has set a 
budget of USD 300,000 to be allocated 
to CSR activities during FY18. This 
budget includes partnership with Ba-
heya foundation as well as committing 
further funds to the Egyptian Stock 
Exchange’s initiative supporting or-
phans and promoting corporate social 
responsibility among listed companies.

NAEEM plans to support “We owe 
it to Egypt”, a foundation established 
by Arab African International Bank 
in 2004. The foundation’s goals are 
to make health care and education 
accessible for all Egyptians. In pre-
vious years, donations were directed 
towards development and equipment 
of medical units in hospitals and clin-
ics including Abu El Reesh, National 
Institute of Oncology, Mansoura 
University Kidney center as well as the 
establishment of Wafaa Egypt mo-
bile clinics within unprivileged areas 
across Egypt.

CSR 2017 Highlights: 
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Youssef is a renowned regional investor and asset 
manager, responsible for managing portfolios worth 
USD 4Bn at varying periods and conducted private 
equity transactions of more than USD 2Bn over the 
past several years in real estate, financial services, 
oil & gas and other sectors across public and private 
markets in UAE, KSA, Egypt and the wider MENA.
Youssef has founded and continues to own significant 
shares in a number of publicly listed and private com-
panies including NAEEM Holding, Coldwell Banker 
and ERA (RE brokerage firm) Master Franchises 
in MENA & East Europe. He is NAEEM Holding’s 
founder and executive board member. Youssef holds a 
Bachelor’s degree of commerce (Accounting Major).

Hussein is a Saudi businessman involved in diversi-
fied businesses. He is also an economic consultant for 
many large gulf companies, board member of several 
organizations including Shobokshi Development and 
Trading Company, Okaz organization for press and 
publication and Aseer Company.
Hussein is also a columnist and writes for Asharq 
Al Awsat, the leading Arabic daily newspaper in the 
Middle East.
In 1995, he was chosen as one of “Global Leaders for 
Tomorrow” at the World Economic Forum. He was 
the first Saudi and gulf businessman to be chosen in 
the Prince of Wales Business Leaders Forum. He has 
given and continues to give lectures in the Middle 
East, Europe and the U.S. 

Hussein Shobokshi
Chairman

Dr. Nasser Abdullah AL Mohawes
Board Member

Khamis Mohamed Bou Haroun
Board Member

Youssef El Far
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Nasser is a co-founder of NAEEM Holding. He 
holds a Doctorate from United States; a Master’s 
degree from Massachusetts Institute of Technology, 
United States, and a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical 
Engineering from Riyadh University (currently King 
Saud University). Dr. Nasser is based in Riyadh.

Khamis held prominent positions in the banking and 
finance sector for the past 25 years. He is currently a 
board member of Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank (ADIB) 
and a member of the executive committee, he holds 
various positions in the UAE and the region including 
being a board member in NAEEM Holding for Invest-
ments and ICD Brookfield, besides being a banking 
expert accredited by the courts in United Arab Emir-
ates and Chairman of Etihad Capital.
Prior to this, Khamis held distinctive positions in the 
banking sector, his experience includes:
• Chairman of Burooj Properties
• Chairman of Takaful Insurance Company and 
Emirates Insurance Association in UAE
• Chairman of Abu Dhabi Financial Services Compa-
ny, a member of Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank
• Chairman of Abu Dhabi National Leasing Company
• CEO of Commercial Bank International (CBI)
• Managing Director of Takamul Real Estate Compa-
ny along with International Brokerage Company
Khamis has also helped establishing prominent busi-
nesses and institutions and was a board member of the 
following:
• RAK Chamber of Commerce and Industry
• Emirates-Jordan Investment Company
• Human Resources Committee in the Emirates Insti-
tute for Banking and Financial Studies
• Seera Bank in Bahrain
• The General Council for Islamic Bank and Financial 
Institutions
• CEMEA Visa International
• Abu Dhabi National Hotel (ADNH)
• Awad Capital LTD (advisory board member)
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Mubarak Bin Fahd 
Board Member

Mohamed Aly 
Regional Investment Holding SPC
Board Member

Dr. Ahmed Saad 
Regional Investment Holding SPC
Board Member

Mubarak brings in over 25 years of experience in 
the finance and economic sectors, he held several 
prestigious positions in the middle east as well as 
Singapore including:
• Office of sheikh Sultan Bin Khalifa Al Nahyan 
2004-2009
• Dubai World Trade Center 2002-2004
• Al Khaleej investment PTE 1998-2003
• Dubai department of tourism and commerce mar-
keting 1992-1998
Mubarak is currently a board member in Etihad 
Capital, he also sits on the boards of several banks in 
the United Arab Emirates.
Mubarak holds a postgraduate MBA in Strategic 
Management from Birmingham (UK) and a Bache-
lor’s degree in Finance, Insurance and Management 
from Northeastern University, Boston (USA).

Mohamed has over 10 years of experience in the 
financial field. His professional career progressed in 
NAEEM Holding. He started as a portfolio manager 
in AICO where he spent 4 years, then in 2010 he 
became managing director of the private banking 
division which specializes in high net worth inves-
tors’ trading; later that year he became real estate 
manager. Mohamed is currently managing director 
of Gold Capital.

Dr. Ahmed was an investment and finance professor 
at the College of Commerce, Cairo University, then 
deputy chairman of Capital Market Authority, after 
that he became the authority’s chairman. He served 
on the board of several governmental institutions 
and entities including Central Bank of Egypt, Mon-
ey Laundering Combating Unit, Egyptian General 
Authority for Monitoring Insurance, Capital Market 
Authority, Egyptian Stock Exchange, Investment 
Risk Guarantee Fund, Settlement Guarantee Fund, 
Mortgage Finance Support & Guarantee Fund. He 
contributed to the development of the Egyptian 
capital market since 1999 till 2011. Dr. Ahmed was 
a board member in different holding companies 
including Holding Company for Metallurgical 
Industries and Holding Company for Airports. He 
also wrote many books in the field of investment and 
finance including financial lease, scientific principles 
for finance, investment strategies and policies, as 
well as advanced studies in finance, investment and 
white-collar crimes in stock exchanges and 
capital markets.
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Youssef is a renowned regional investor and asset manager, 
responsible for managing portfolios worth USD 4Bn at 
varying periods and conducted private equity transactions 
of more than USD 2Bn over the past several years in real 
estate, financial services, oil & gas and other sectors across 
public and private markets in UAE, KSA, Egypt and the 
wider MENA.
Youssef has founded and continues to own significant 
shares in a number of publicly listed and private compa-
nies including NAEEM Holding, Coldwell Banker and 
ERA (RE brokerage firm) Master Franchises in MENA & 
East Europe. He is NAEEM Holding’s founder and exec-
utive board member. Youssef holds a Bachelor’s degree of 
commerce (Accounting Major).

Omnia is the Chief Investment Officer in NAEEM Hold-
ing For Investments and Chairman and Managing Direc-
tor of NAEEM Financial Investments. She has investment 
banking and private equity experience and a thorough 
knowledge of the conduct of both in the MENA region for 
the past 18 years.
Prior to joining NAEEM, Omnia was a Founder and the 
Managing Director of Viveris Mashrek, a subsidiary of 
Viveris Management (France), a private equity company 
with AUMs in excess of USD 4Bn. She was responsible 
for the company’s strategy and operations in addition to 
her role as a fund manager. She has participated in placing 
USD 40Mn of funds for Viveris and USD 100Mn SMEs 
fund, preparing a deal flow pipeline, and formation of stra-
tegic alliances with known investment banks and private 
equity firms.
Prior to joining Viveris Management, Omnia was a part-
ner and director in Haykala Investment Management, 
a private equity manager specialized in restructuring 

Youssef El Far
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Omnia Kelig
Chief Investment Officer - NAEEM Holding
Chairman and Managing Director - NAEEM 
Financial Investments

distressed companies in Egypt. Haykala managed the 
Middle East turnaround fund subscribed to by regional 
investors like Al Futtaim and Al Zamil, in addition to 
the major shareholder in Haykala being the Commercial 
International Bank. Omnia has structured then the first 
acquisition finance deal structured as an Islamic Ijara in 
Egypt in the oil field services sector, and was replicated in 
the iron and steel sector.
Prior to joining Haykala, Omnia was co-head of the in-
vestment banking – Barclays Bank Egypt since April 2005 
where she structured and executed land mark acquisition 
finance and project finance transactions.
She was also actively involved in structuring securitiza-
tion transactions and other forms of balance sheet optimi-
zation, including the following deals:
Execution of the largest acquisition deal in MENA region 
in 2005: USD 73Mn, for Egyptian Fertilizers Company 
(EFC)
Project finance debt syndication for USD 600Mn for EFC
Structuring and Execution of the first securitization deal 
in Egypt, Contact Car Securitization 
OCI EGP 1.45Bn bond issuance in 2005
From 1999 till 2004, Omnia worked in the corporate 
finance team at the Commercial International Bank (CIB) 
S.A.E., whereby she was involved in a number of IPOs, 
private placements, mergers and acquisitions transactions 
in a wide array of sectors including telecommunications 
(Telecom Egypt IPO), real estate (Amer Group Expan-
sion), textiles, tourism and food and beverages.
Omnia holds a Bachelor’s Degree, with a double major 
in business and economics, from the American Univer-
sity in Cairo and is a CFA charter holder. She lectures 
in the American University in Cairo Credit and Invest-
ment Banking Course. Omnia also pursues independent 
research efforts in Islamic Finance, with her first article 
titled “Islamic Finance and its role in SMEs Development: 
Case in Point Egypt” that was published by the Interna-
tional Journal of Social Entrepreneurship and Innovation 
in August, 2013. She is currently enrolled in the Executive 
MBA program in London Business School (LBS).
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Talal is the Deputy Chief Executive Officer for finance 
and administration of NAEEM Holding and has over 25 
years of experience with local and regional institutions in 
the finance field.
He worked as a financial and administrative manager 
for several firms in Egypt in addition to several NAEEM 
Group companies and NAEEM commercial services in 
association with Saudi Investment Bank (Asset Man-
agement) in Riyadh. He then moved to Dubai where he 
worked with NAEEM Shares & Bonds as a financial man-
ager, he later became Chief Financial Officer of Etihad 
Capital PJSC. Talal acted as Etihad Capital Deputy CEO 
starting November 2013 until February 2015.
Talal is the Chairman of NAEEM Misr Fund; he is a 
member of the following boards as well: NAEEM Finan-
cial Investments, NAEEM Investment Fund, NAEEM 
Brokerage, Smart Village for Real Estate Investments Co. 
and REACAP Financial Investments.
Talal holds a Bachelor’s degree of commerce, accounting 
major from the Arab University of Beirut.

Khaled joined Nile Investment in 1997 as part of the 
brokerage operations’ team. He then headed market oper-
ations then became Managing Director in 2003. Khaled 
then lead the company to become one of the top ten bro-
kerage firms in Egypt ranked by transactions size.
After NAEEM Holding’s acquisition of Nile Investment, 
he became board member of NAEEM Brokerage and Ara-
bia Online. Shortly after, he moved to Saudi Arabia as a 
regional director capitalizing on his expertise on the retail 
side and managing high net worth clients. In his new role, 
Khaled focused on business development and strategic 
relationship management.
He has been influential to the development and integra-
tion of the brokerage operations of the region. With over 
20 years of solid experience in the equity markets, Khaled 
moved back to Egypt in 2015 as Chairman for  
NAEEM Brokerage.

Talal Akeil 
Deputy CEO Finance and Administration
NAEEM Holding

Khaled Rabie
Chairman - NAEEM Brokerage Egypt

Tarek is the Chief Executive Officer, NAEEM Brokerage 
Egypt. Prior to that he was the Executive Director for 
local institutions, High-Net worth and GCC at NAEEM 
Brokerage Egypt, with a successful 18 years track record in 
equity sales and trading.
He started his career as an equity trader, and then became 
in charge of establishing and managing relationships with 
over 100 top tier local and regional financial banks and 
funds. Tarek holds a Bachelor’s degree of commerce from 
the University of Alexandria.

Ezz brings in over 20 years of experience in the Egyptian 
capital market, of which 12 years were dedicated to asset 
management. He held various positions in brokerage 
and asset management firms in Egypt as well as the gulf 
including: Strategic Securities Group, First Gulf Bank in 
Abu Dhabi, and Amwal Investments.

Tarek Abaza 
Chief Executive Officer - NAEEM Brokerage Egypt

Ezz Kamel 
General Manager, Asset Management – Egypt, 
NAEEM Financial Investments
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Alyaa Joined Naeem Financial Investments in February 
2017 to help widen the company’s product offerings and 
lead efforts to introduce the innovation of Exchange Traded 
Funds (ETFs). 
Prior to joining Naeem Financial Investments, Alyaa 
headed the Egypt’s Funds and Portfolio management unit 
in Beltone Asset Management and was the fund manager of 
XT-Misr, the first Egyptian Exchange Traded Fund (ETF) 
in Egypt. Ms. Gomaa joined Beltone Financial in 2006, the 
largest Asset Manager in Egypt with assets under manage-
ment amounting to EGP 32bn of which the Egypt Equity 
mandates in excess of EGP 3.0bn were under her manage-
ment.
Initially, she worked as a financial analyst and within two 
years was introduced to the product development side 
where her main focus was to introduce new, innovative 
products to the market. On behalf of Beltone she spearhead-
ed efforts to introduce the first ETF in Egypt. Perseverance, 
dedication, and a strong will have marked her name on a 
major milestone in the development of the local industry. 
Achieving this task not only required building the appropri-
ate trading infrastructure for ETFs but also introducing two 
independent, market functions namely, market making and 
short selling. She was able to demonstrate exemplary leader-
ship skills by leading a designated team from the Egyptian 
Financial Regulatory Authority, the Egyptian Exchange, 
the Egyptian Clearing and Settlement House and Beltone 
in laying down the regulatory framework for ETFs, short 
selling and market making. 
Following eight years of hard work on this project, the first 
ETF and Market Maker were successfully launched on the 
Egyptian Exchange in 2015, finally putting Egypt on the 
landscape of the fastest growing investment vehicle in the 
world. Alyaa is targeting the development of this field fur-
ther across the region through her role in Naeem Financial 
Investments, which will contribute to the development of 
the markets and set the stage for ensuing sophisticated and 
innovative investment tools that would add depth to them, 
edging them closer to advanced global standards.
Alyaa holds an MBA from London Business School (2013). 
She was also selected by Amwal Al Ghad Magazine as one 
of the top 50 women performing in Egypt in 2015.

Alyaa Gomaa
Chief Business Development Officer, Asset 
Management – NAEEM Financial Investments
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2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

Noncurrent Assets

Fixed assets (5) 3,577,474 4,093,593

Projects under construction (6) 4,926,561 4,903,027

Available for sale investments (7) 94,860,573 90,079,700

Long-term investments (8) 615,868 654,981

Investments in associates (24) 2,824,677 2,622,131

Real Estate Investment (28) 14,826,500 14,904,868

Notes receivables- Long Term 5,032,193 191,020

Deferred tax assets 14,860 7,140

Employees rewarding system (9) 9,935,265 14,236,192

Goodwill (10) 54,158,508 56,908,567

Total Noncurrent Assets 190,772,479 188,601,219

Current Assets

Cash on hand and at banks (11) 4,798,770 15,222,370

Investments at fair value through profits or losses (13) 5,165,900 1,616,182

Available for sale financial investments (27) 18,899,545 18,899,545

Accounts receivable (12) 10,170,354 12,264,023

Work in process (26) 13,474,195 12,334,154

Prepaid expenses and other debit balances (14) 37,638,165 28,169,238

Due from related parties 9,793,899 -

Finished units (22) 6,930,143 14,795,563

Total current Assets 106,870,971 103,301,075 

Total Assets 297,643,450 291,902,294

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

Equity

Issued and paid up capital (18) 218,594,893 198,722,630

Legal reserve 8,409,230 8,149,099

General reserve 65,294,578 85,166,841

Treasury stock reserve (19) 7,233,894 7,233,894

Employees’ rewarding system revaluation 
differences (9) (10,695,357) (6,394,430)

Foreign Currency Translation (26,648,753) (31,057,556)

(Accumulated losses) (34,052,705) (42,059,239)

Profit for the year 1,056,179 2,122,597

Majority interest 231,891,725 221,883,959

Minority interest 27,180,778 26,989,483

Total Equity 259,072,503 248,873,442

Current liabilities

Provisions (15) 54,032 87,757

Banks overdraft (16) 14,379,351 15,731,041

Accounts receivables – credit balances 3,019,728 12,563,063

Accrued expenses and other credit balances (17) 14,504,460 11,086,253

Total current liabilities 31,957,571 39,468,114

Noncurrent liabilities

Long-term liabilities (20) 6,522,535 3,499,635

Deferred tax liabilities 90,841 61,103

Total noncurrent liabilities 6,613,376 3,560,738

Total Liabilities 38,570,947 43,028,852

Total Equity & Liabilities 297,643,450 291,902,294

The accompanying notes from (1) to (30) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017
2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

Fees, commissions and investments managing 
revenues 6,197,891 7,855,451

Units sales revenue 3,611,125 15,614,341

Coupon revenue 2,704,460 -

Cost of units sold (1,996,043) (10,075,226)

(Loss) Gain of investment sale (444,587) 1,871,896

(Loss) from sale of available for sale investment (291,709) -

Gain from sale of current assets held for sale 415,787 -

Unrealized gain (Loss) from revaluation of 
investments at fair value through profit or loss 667,191 (363,795)

Revaluation gain from real estate investments - 39,372

Company’s share of (losses) in associates (413,787) -

Total Revenues 10,450,328 14,942,039

General and administrative expenses (7,405,164) (12,597,928)

Marketing and managing expenses (142,029) (937,715)

Finance lease expenses (1,044,551) (240,236)

Provisions (15) - (21,406)

Real estate depreciation (78,368) (142,272)

Fixed assets depreciation (5) (377,432) (488,411)

Capital (loss) - (7,417)

Credit interests 212,273 307,414

Foreign exchange differences (197,268) 5,104,127

Other income 2,735,359 1,046,987

Debit interests (2,656,855) (2,986,460)

Profits for the year before taxes 1,496,293 3,978,722

Income tax (226,801) (1,326,615)

Deferred income taxes (22,018) (60,042)

Profits for the Year 1,247,474 2,592,065

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

The accompanying notes from (1) to (30) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Represented in:

Shareholders’ equity of the Holding Company 1,056,179 2,122,597

Minority interest 191,295 469,468

Profits for the Year 1,247,474 2,592,065

Other comprehensive income

Revaluation from available for sale investments 2,699,643 9,511,058

Consolidated translation differences 4,408,803 (11,620,748)

Total other comprehensive income of the year 7,108,446 (2,109,690)

Total comprehensive income 8,355,920 482,375
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017

Issued &
paid up capital

Legal
Reserve

General 
reserve

Treasury
Stocks

Treasury
stock

Reserve

Employees 
rewarding 

system 
revaluation 
differences

(Loss) on 
revaluation 
of available 

for sale 
investments

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Differences

(Accumulated 
Losses)

Profits 
for the year Total Minority

Interest Total

USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Balance as of 1 
January 2017 198,722,630 8,149,099 85,166,841 - 7,233,894 (6,394,430) 123 (31,057,556) (42,059,239) 2,122,597 221,883,959 26,989,483 248,873,442

Transferred 
to retained 
earnings

- - - - - - - - 2,122,597 (2,122,597) - - -

Transferred to 
Legal reserve - 260,131 - - - - - - (260,131) - - -

Capital increase 19,872,263 (19,872,263) - - - - - - - - - -

Adjustment 
in retained 
earnings 
(accumulated 
losses)

- - - - - - - - 6,144,068 - 6,144,068 - 6,144,068

Revaluation 
of employees’ 
rewarding 
system shares

- - - - - (4,300,927) - - - - (4,300,927) - (4,300,927)

Revaluation 
of available 
for sale 
investments

- - - - - - 2,699,643 - - - 2,699,643 - 2,699,643

Change in 
Minority interest - - - - - - - - - - - 191,295 191,295

Consolidated 
translation 
differences

- - - - - - - 4,408,803 - - 4,408,803 - 4,408,803

Profit for the 
year - - - - - - - - 1,056,179 1,056,179 1,056,179

Balance as of 
31 December 
2017

218,594,893 8,409,230 65,294,578 - 7,233,894 (10,695,357) 2,699,766 (26,648,753) (34,052,705) 1,056,179 231,891,725 27,180,778 259,072,503

The accompanying notes from (1) to (30) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017

Issued &
paid up capital

Legal
Reserve

General 
reserve

Treasury
Stocks

Treasury
stock

Reserve

Employees 
rewarding 

system 
revaluation 
differences

(Loss) on 
revaluation 
of available 

for sale 
investments

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Differences

(Accumulated 
Losses)

Profits 
for the year Total Minority

Interest Total

USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Balance as of 1 
January 2016 283,889,471 8,149,099 - (1,492,537) 6,671,109 (11,465,392) (9,510,935) (19,436,808) (36,129,274) (5,929,965) 214,744,768 51,109,630 265,854,398

Transferred to 
legal reserve 
& retained 
earnings

- - - - - - - - (5,929,965) 5,929,965 - - -

Transferred to 
general reserve (85,166,841) - 85,166,841 - - - - - - - - - -

Gain from 
revaluation of 
investments 
available for sale

- - - - - - 9,511,058 - - - 9,511,058 - 9,511,058

Subsidiaries 
treasury stocks - - - - 562,785 - - - - - 562,785 - 562,785

Treasury stocks - - - 1,492,537 - - - - - - 1,492,537 - 1,492,537

Consolidated 
translation 
differences

- - - - - - - (11,620,748) - - (11,620,748) - (11,620,748)

Revaluation 
of employees’ 
rewarding 
system shares

- - - - - 5,070,962 - - - - 5,070,962 - 5,070,962

Minority interest - - - - - - - - - - - (24,120,147) (24,120,147)

Profit for the 
year - - - - - - - - - 2,122,597 2,122,597 - 2,122,597

Balance as of 
31 December 
2017

198,722,630 8,149,099 85,166,841 - 7,233,894 (6,394,430) 123 (31,057,556) (42,059,239) 2,122,597 221,883,959 26,989,483 248,873,442

The accompanying notes from (1) to (30) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profits for the year before taxes 1,496,293 3,978,722

Adjustments to reconcile (losses) profits for the year to cash flows from operating activities

Depreciation of Fixed assets (5) 377,432 488,411

Credit interest (212,273) (307,414)

Debit interest 2,656,855 2,986,460

Foreign currency difference 197,268 (5,104,127)

Unrealized losses on revaluation of Investments at 
fair value through profit or loss 444,587 363,795

Gain (losses) before changes in working 
capital 4,960,162 2,405,847

Change in accounts receivable (12) 2,093,669 5,132,654

Provisions (33,725) (203,707)

Change in prepayments and other debit balances (14) (9,468,927) (3,941,971)

Change in accounts receivable – credit balances (9,543,335) 2,395,012

Change in accrued expenses and other credit  
balances (17) 3,191,406 (8,278,590)

Change in due from related parties (9,793,899) -

Change in work in progress (1,140,041) 14,624,708

Change in finished units 7,865,420 14,290,673

NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN) PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (11,869,270) 26,424,626

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Payments) to acquire fixed assets (5) (606,246) (816,939)

Proceeds from selling fixed assets 744,933 5,285

Change in Projects under construction (23,534) -

Change in investments available for sale (7) (2,081,230) (7,304,670)

Change in due from sale contract (4,841,173) 914,444

Change in investments at fair value through profit 
or loss (3,994,305) 6,672,175

Change in real estate investments 78,368 24,480

Change in employee’s rewarding system - 1,102,329

Change in long-term investments (8) 39,113 82,100

Change in goodwill 2,750,059 -

Change in investments in associates (202,546) 373,497

NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN) PROVIDED FROM 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (8,136,561) 1,052,701

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Payments) for banks overdraft (16) (1,351,690) (3,023,549)

Proceeds (Payments) long term liabilities 3,022,900 (49,946)

Debit interest (2,656,855) (2,986,460)

Minority interest - (24,120,147)

Treasury stocks reserve - 562,785

Purchase of treasury stocks - 1,492,537

Credit Interest 212,273 307,414

Consolidated translation differences 4,408,803 (11,620,748)

Change in Accumulated Losses 6,144,068 -

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 9,779,499 (39,438,114)

NET CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR (10,226,332) (11,960,787)

Cash and cash equivalents – beginning of the year (11) 15,222,370 22,079,030

Impact of change in exchange rates (197,268) 5,104,127

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF THE 
YEAR (11) 4,798,770 15,222,370

The accompanying notes from (1) to (30) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of 31 DECEMBER 2017

1. BACKGROUND
Naeem Holding Company for Investments “S,A,E - Free Zone” was incorporated according to the provisions of law 
8 of 1997 and its executive regulations and law 95 of 1992 and its special executive regulations related to the capital 
market, The Company was registered in the commercial registry under number 881- Ismailia on the 14 May 2006, The 
Company’s activities are as follows:

1. Participate, either fully or partially, in establishing companies.

2. Factoring

3. Risk capital

4. Finance lease.

5. Guarantee and covering public offering.

6. Margin trading and custodian function

The Company has the following investments in subsidiaries as of 31 December 2017: 2. PURPOSE OF PREPARATION 
The consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes were prepared to be provided to Egyptian Security 
Exchange Commission as required by the Egyptian laws and applicable local regulations.

3.BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
- The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are prepared in accordance with the Egyptian 
accounting standards and the applicable laws and regulations,

- Similar accounts for assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of Holding Company and its subsidiaries have been 
grouped, after excluding the following:

a. The equity of subsidiary is reduced against the cost of the investment cost of Holding Company in its subsidiary.

b. Intercompany accounts between Holding Company and subsidiaries:

c. Current accounts between group companies

d. Notes receivables / payables between group companies

e. Revenues, expenses and dividends paid between Holding Company and subsidiaries during the year.

f.  Unrealized gains on the date of consolidated financial statements that resulted from transactions between 
Holding Company and subsidiaries which may appear in some assets at the date of consolidated financial statements,

g. Any differences between debit and credit balances through settlements, which arose as a result of operation 
between Holding Company and subsidiaries which recorded in the books of one of the companies and have not been 
recorded in the books of other Company.

h. Show minority interest in a separate line item in the consolidated financial statements attributed to equity share 
in subsidiaries

4.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4-1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the going concern assumption and on a historical cost 
basis, except for investment property and available for sale financial assets that have been measured at fair value.

 SUBSIDIARIES COMPANIES
Subsidiaries are the companies that under the control of the group, In Which the group has the ability to control their 
financial and operating policies to obtain benefits from its activities taking into consideration the current and probable 

* RECAP for Financial Investments owns the following ownerships in its Subsidiaries:

- The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 has been approved in accordance with the board 
of directors held in 28 February 2018

Company Activity Share %

NAEEM Brokerage Company Financial Securities Brokerage 99.96%

NAEEM Financial Investments Company Financial services 99.99%

NAEEM Mortgage for Real Estate Real estate financing 98.4%

NAEEM for Consulting Services Company Consulting services 98%

NAEEM Capital Limited Company Financial Securities investments 100%

NAEEM for Investment Fund Management Investment Fund 99.80%

NAEEM for Real Estate Management Limited Company Real Estate Investment Management 100%

NAEEM Capital for Investment  
(Al Tawfik for Financial Investments) Financial services 99.98%

Al Tawfik for Brokerage Financial Securities Brokerage 99.96%

NAEEM Real Estate Investment Fund Company Investment Fund 99%

Mina Mac Fund Company Investment Fund 99%

Mina Growth Fund Company Investment Fund 99%

NAEEM Real Estate Investment Fund (NAEEM for  
Investment Funds Company previously) Investment Fund 99,50%

Gold Capital for trading Company Commodities Trading 98.80%

Recap For Financial investments (Recap holding previously)* Financial services 47.61%

Arab Sweeteners Company Manufacturing 99.98%

Company Activity Share %

SVREICO for Real Estate Investment Company Financial Securities Brokerage 99.96%

Naeem For Real Estate Investments Financial services 99.99%

Company Activity Share %

Bedaya For Real Estate Investments (Subsidiary of Naeem 
for Real Estate Investments) Real estate financing 98.4%

Belady For Tourist Development and Hotels (Subsidiary of 
Naeem for Real Estate Investments) Consulting services 98%

Naeem Development Projects Limited Company Financial 
Securities investments Financial Securities investments 100%
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voting rights at the date of preparation of consolidated financial statements, When measuring the extent of control, 
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisi-
tion till the date losing control of Holding Company on subsidiaries.

 CONSOLIDATION ELIMINATION TRANSACTIONS 
When preparing consolidated financial statements all balances, transactions and unrealized gains and losses between 
group companies are eliminated.

 CONFORMITY WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are prepared in accordance with the Egyptian 
accounting standards and the applicable laws and regulations.

4-2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted this year are consistent with those of the previous year

4-3 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
The Holding Company maintains its accounts in US Dollar as it operates in a free zone, Transactions denominated 
in foreign currencies are recorded at the prevailing exchange rate at the date of the transaction, Monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other than US Dollar are retranslated using the prevailing exchange rate 
currencies other than US Dollar at the balance sheet date, All differences are recognized in the statement of income.

For the subsidiaries that maintains its accounts with a different currencies other than used by the Holding Company 
(US Dollars), balances of assets and liabilities of the financial statements for these companies are translated using the 
exchange rates prevailing at the financial position 8date, equity translated on the basis of historical exchange rates, 
Revenues and expenses on the bases of average exchange rates during the year, Foreign exchange translation differenc-
es recorded in special reserve item “Consolidated Translation differences due to consolidation” in equity consolidated 
balance sheet.

4-4 REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured, Corresponding cost for this process and cost to complete, if available, are measured:

• Profit or loss resulted from sale of financial investments are recognized on transaction date based on the dif-
ference between the cost and selling price less selling commission and expenses,

• Dividends income is recognized when collected,

• Interest income is recognized on accrual basis,

• Brokerage commissions resulting from purchase and sale of securities for clients are recorded after implemen-
tation of buy or selling order and issuing client’s invoice,

• Management fees are calculated on a monthly basis based on agreed upon contract of the total customer’s 
investment portfolio and total market value shares of the client according to contract terms,

• Purchase with margin revenue is recognized on accrual basis and according to agreed upon interest rate,

• Custody revenues are recognized on accrual basis based on the agreed upon percentages with the customers,

• Performance revenue are calculated annually on the net profit of the investment portfolio of the client under 
the terms of the contract.

• Operating Revenue from the Sale of Real Estates and Lands:

 Revenue is achieved upon the delivery of units to the Company’s customers and the passing of all risks and  
 economic benefits related to the unit. 
 Revenue is recognized when there is sufficient certainty that the economic benefits associated with the trans 
 action will flow to the entity and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 
 Revenue shall be measured at the fair value of the due or the received consideration. Any trade discounts,  
 volume rebates, sales taxes or charges shall be deducted and revenue is measured net of these items. 

• Interest Revenue

 Interest revenue is recognized by using the effective yield method. Interest revenue is recorded in the Profit or  
 Loss statement under the financing income.

4-5 FIXED ASSETS 
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, Such 
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria 
are met, Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recog-
nized in consolidated statement of income as incurred.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management , and is computed using the straight-line method according to the estimated useful 
life of the asset as follows
         Years
    Buildings    20
    Furniture and office utilities  10-16 
    Office equipment and tools  3-8
    Vehicles    3-5

Fixed assets are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or dispos-
al, any gain or loss arising on derecognizing of the asset is included in the consolidated statement of income when the 
asset is derecognized.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year-end.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is an indication that fixed assets may be impaired, 
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of income.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to deter-
mine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized, The reversal is limited so that the 
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years, Such rever-
sal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income

4-6 INVESTMENTS 

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
Investments at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets classified as either held for trading acquired for the 
purpose of selling in the near term or financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit  
or loss.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value inclusive direct attributable 
 expenses.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value with gains or 
losses recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

A gain or loss arising from sale of an investment at fair value through profit or loss shall be recognized in the consoli-
dated statement of income

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Investments in subsidiaries are investments in entities which the Company has control, Control is presumed to exist 
when the parent owns, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries more than half of the voting power of the investee, 
unless, in exceptional circumstances, it can be clearly demonstrated that this is not the case.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in separate financial statements at cost acquisition including transaction 
cost and in case the investment is impaired, the carrying amount is adjusted by the value of this impairment and is 
charged to the separate statement of income for each investment separately, Impairment loss shall not be reversed.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS
Available for sale investments are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are 
not classified as loans and receivables, held to maturity investments or investments at fair value through profit or loss.

Available for sale investments are initially recognized at fair value inclusive directly attributable expenses.
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After initial measurement, available for sale investments are measured at fair value with unrealized gains or losses 
recognized directly in equity until the investment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss recorded 
in equity is recognized in the statement of income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss 
recorded in equity is recognized in the statement of income,

If the fair value of an equity instrument cannot be reliably measured, the investment is carried at cost.

Equity investments: where there is an evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss is removed from the equity and rec-
ognized in the statement of income, Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the statement 
of income; increases in the fair value after impairment are recognized directly in equity.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
Investments in associates are investments in entities which the Company has significant influence and that is neither 
a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture, Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Company holds, di-
rectly or indirectly through subsidiaries 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee, unless it can be clearly 
demonstrated that this is not the case.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements at cost inclusive acquisition cost 
and in case the investment is impaired, the carrying amount is adjusted by the value of this impairment and is charged 
to the consolidated statement of income for each investment separately, Impairment loss shall not be reversed.

CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Current assets held for sale is the non-current assets that is expected to regain its book value basically from sale agree-
ment not from the use of those assets those assets are measured by the lower of the book value or the fair value after 
deducting the sales cost.

Current assets held for sale in case of impairment, the carrying amount to be adjusted by the value of this impairment 
and are charged to the statement of income Impairment losses to be reversed in the year when occurred, and to the 
extent to the amount of book value that previously reduced unless the impairment loss was recognized in the 
previous years. 

4-7 PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made, Provisions are reviewed at the financial posi-
tion date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate, Where the effect of the time value of money is material, 
the amount of a provision should be the present value of the expected expenditures required to settle the obligation, 
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

4-8 LEGAL RESERVE
According to the Company’s articles of association, 5% of the net profits of the year is transferred to the legal reserve 
until this reserve reaches 50% of the issued capital, the reserve is used upon a decision from the general assembly meet-
ing based on the proposal of the board of directors

4-9 INCOME TAXES
Income tax is calculated in accordance with the Egyptian tax law.

CURRENT INCOME TAX
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior year are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the tax authority.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income tax is recognized using the liability method on temporary differences between the amount attributed 
to an asset or liability for tax purposes (tax base) and its carrying amount in the balance sheet (accounting base) using 
the applicable tax rate.

Deferred tax asset is recognized when it is probable that the asset can be utilized to reduce future taxable profits and 
the asset is reduced by the portion that will not create future benefit.

Current and deferred tax shall be recognized as income or an expense and included in the statement of income for the 

year, except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognized, in the same or a different 
year, directly in equity.

4-10  EXPENSES
All expenses including operating expenses, general and administrative expenses and other expenses are recognized 
and charged to the consolidated statement of income in the financial year in which these expenses were incurred.

4-11  TREASURY SHARES 
Treasury shares are recognized at cost and deducted from equity at the balance sheet, taking into consideration for 
the company not to hold these stocks less than three months but not to exceed one year holding year, The company is 
authorized to sell the stocks during the year in case that their fair value exceeds their cost after general authority for 
financial supervisory approval, The company’s board of directors should disclose in the extraordinary general assembly 
meeting the reasons for the company holding these stocks for more than six months to agree on the action to be taken 
towards them.

4-12  EMPLOYEES’ REWARDING SYSTEM
Securities held for employees’ rewarding system are measured by reference to the fair value (market price) at the date 
of establishing the system and allocation and are revaluated to the fair value (market price) at each reporting date, 
together with a corresponding revaluation differences in equity at the balance sheet.

4-13  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties represent associate companies, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the 
Company, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties, pricing policies and 
terms of these transactions are approved by the boards of directors.

4-14  ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses during 
the financial years, Actual results could differ from these estimates.

4-15  IMPAIRMENT 

 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired, A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and 
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset and has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of 
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
The Company assesses at each consolidated balance sheet date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired, Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating units (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income.

A previously recognized impairment loss is only reversed if there has been a change in the assumptions used to deter-
mine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized, The reversal is limited so that the 
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years, Such rever-
sal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

4-16  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method.

4-17  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
For the purpose of preparing the cash flow statement, the cash and cash equivalent comprise cash on hand, current 
accounts with banks and time deposits maturing within three months.
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4-18  PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
Projects under construction represent the amounts that are incurred for the purpose of constructing or purchasing 
fixed assets until it is ready to be used in the operation, upon which it is transferred to fixed assets, Projects under con-
struction are valued at cost less impairment.

4-19  WORK IN PROCESS
Properties acquired, constructed or in the course of construction for future sale are classified as work in process at 
their cost.

Work in process is subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost to complete 
development and selling activities. 

4-20  LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Long term investments is represented in the company’s share in Misr for Central Clearing Depository Registry 
(MCDR), the long term investments should be recorded at the acquisition cost less any permanent impairment in its 
value for each investment separately.

4-21  FINANCE LEASE
Finance lease is classified as operating lease according to Egyptian laws and regulations, the value of lease installments 
is recorded as expenses by the straight line basis all over the lease period.

4-22  FINISHED UNITS
Revenue from finished units is recorded at fair value for the amount received or due by the net after deducting any 
commercial discounts, quantities, sales tax or any other fees.

4-23  INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment property is property (land or a building—or part of a building—or both) held (by the owner or by the 
lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.

Investment property is measured initially at cost including transaction costs. The investments property are measured 
after initial recognition at fair value and the gains or losses arising from change in fair value are recognized in the state-
ment of income.

4-24  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The fair value represents the price which would be received by the company in return for selling an asset or transferring 
a liability under an orderly transaction between market participants on the date of measurement.

Fair value measurement is based on the assumption that the asset sale or liability transfer transaction will take place in 
the principal market of the asset or liability or the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The fair value of the asset or liability is measured by means of the assumptions likely to be used by the market partici-
pants upon pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market participants will work on achieving their economic 
interests.

Fair value measurement for the non-financial asset or liability takes into account the market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by making the most acceptable use of the asset or by selling the asset to another market 
partner capable of using the asset in its utmost capacity. 

As for the current assets in an active market, the fair value is determined by referring to the declared market purchase 
prices. 

Fair value of the interest-bearing items is estimated based on the discounted cash flows, by using the interest rates 
applicable to identical items having the same conditions and risk properties. 

As for unlisted assets, their fair value is determined by referring to the market value of identical assets or based on the 
expected discounted cash flows. 

The company uses valuation techniques appropriate for the surrounding circumstances, in respect of which adequate 
data is available for the purpose of fair value measurement. Consequently, the company maximizes the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs. 

4-24  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONT’D)
All assets and liabilities the fair value of which is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are classified into 
three main levels in terms of fair value measurement, as follows: 

• First level: by using unadjusted quoted prices of identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

• Second level: by using inputs other than the quoted prices mentioned in the first level, which are observable 
for the asset or liability whether directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. price-derived inputs). 

• Third level: by using valuation techniques which include inputs for the asset or liability none based on observ-
able market data. 

• As for the assets and liabilities frequently recognized in the financial statements, the company determines 
whether the three levels of fair value hierarchy were alternatively used or not, by way of revaluating the forego-
ing classification at the end of the reporting year. 

• For fair value disclosure purposes, the company has specified some categories for assets and liabilities based 
on their nature, properties and relevant risks, as well as their levels of classification in the fair value hierarchy 
indicated above.

 
5. FIXED ASSETS Buildings

Furniture 
and office 

utilities

Office 
equipment 
and tools

Vehicles Total

USD USD USD USD USD
Cost

1 January 2017 2,012,233 5,454,147 2,437,282 292,288 10,195,950

Additions for the Year - 230,395 191,428 184,423 606,246

Disposals for the Year - (974,587) (1,088,857) (88,285) (2,151,729)

30 September 2017 2,012,233 4,709,955 1,539,853 388,426 8,650,467

Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2017 (162,826) (3,355,413) (2,437,281) (146,837) (6,102,357)

Depreciation for the Year (28,494) (180,361) (70,075) (98,502) (377,432)

Disposals for the Year - 408,317 967,504 30,975 1,406,796

31 December 2017 (191,320) (3,127,458) (1,539,852) (214,364) (5,072,994)

Net Book Value 31 
December 2017 1,820,913 1,582,498 1 174,062 3,577,474
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Buildings
Furniture 
and office 

utilities

Office 
equipment 
and tools

Vehicles Total

USD USD USD USD USD
Cost
1 January 2016 1,483,232 5,401,119 2,281,080 294,380 9,459,811

Additions for the Year 529,001 112,552 157,652 17,734 816,939

Disposals for the Year - (59,524) (1,450) (19,826) (80,800)

31 December 2016 2,012,233 5,454,147 2,437,282 292,288 10,195,950

Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2016 (108,465) (3,187,544) (2,271,814) (121,638) (5,689,461)

Depreciation for the Year (54,361) (221,902) (167,123) (45,025) (488,411)

Disposals’ depreciation for 
the Year - 54,033 1,656 19,826 75,515

31 December 2016 (162,826) (3,355,413) (2,437,281) (146,837) (6,102,357)
Net Book Value 31 
December 2016 1,849,407 2,098,734 1 145,451 4,093,593

9. EMPLOYEES’ REWARDING SYSTEM

10. GOODWILL 

7. AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

6. PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION

8. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Beginning balance for the year* 4,903,027 4,903,027

 Additions** 23,534 -

Ending balance for the year 4,926,561 4,903,027

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

*The projects under construction are represented in the studies and preparations made for an industrial project (Arab 
Sweeteners Company).

**Additions represented in preparing Recap Company headquarter in smart village.

*The value of Quoted shares in the Egyptian stock exchange commission amounted to 31,146,031shares at fair market 
value USD 55,439,935 from Investments in Egyptian Gulf Bank shares mortgaged by a letter of guarantee issued from 
the Arab African bank in favor of NAEEM for Stock and Bonds Company as a guarantee of brokerage activities and 
Etihad Capital Company with the aim of financing a securities portfolio investment (Note23).

*The change in investment is due to the re- distribution of ratio in accordance with the volume of transactions in the 
market and be revaluated every three months by the Settlement Guarantee Fund.

Quoted shares in the stock market * 67,736,702 62,880,749

Unquoted shares 27,123,871 27,198,951

94,860,573 90,079,700

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)
Misr Company for central Clearing and Depository 187,219 183,185

Guarantee settlement fund* 421,599 464,954

Dealers insurance fund 7,050 6,842

615,868 654,981

The balance of employees rewarding system as of 31 December 2017 amounted to USD 9,935,265 represented in the 
market value of the system shares with amount of USD 8,470,384 in addition to cash portion amounting to USD 
1,464,881

On 30 April 2008, all treasury stocks had been transferred to employees’ rewarding system with total number of 
11,372,754 share and the stocks were revaluated using the fair (market) value at the date of transfer.

On 30 March 2008 the ordinary general assembly meeting agreed on board of directors’ proposal to declare 1 stock 
dividend for every 3 shares, the employee rewarding system portion is 3,790,919 shares. On 16 July 2008 the transac-
tion was registered at Misr for Central Clearing. Depository and Registry.

On 24 May 2013, 5,000,000 shares has been transferred to employees rewarding system previously purchased on 13 
November 2012 as per the extraordinary general assembly meeting decision for financing the employees rewarding 
system.

On 22 June 2017 the ordinary general assembly meeting agreed on board of directors’ proposal to declare 1 stock div-
idend for every 10 shares, the employee rewarding system portion is 1,878,133 shares. On 9 October 2017 the transac-
tion was registered at Misr for Central Clearing. Depository and Registry.

 The employees rewarding system shares has been revaluated by the market value by USD 9,935,265 (USD 14,236,192 
at 31 December 2016) so the negative net valuation differences of these shares become USD 10,695,357 in 31 Decem-
ber 2017 which classified in Employees rewarding system revaluation differences in the shareholder equity section in 
the standalone financial statement (USD 6,394,430 at 31 December 2016) 

 
Movement Summary is as follows:

Shares Shares

Total shares transferred to the system 11,372,754

Free Stock dividends 5,669,052

Shares transferred to the system 5,000,000

Total shares of the system 22,041,806

Shares designated and Sold
Shares sold (20,000)

Holding company’s employees (390,000)

Subsidiaries employees (972,334)

Total designated shares (1,382,334)

Total undesignated shares 20,659,472

Goodwill arising from acquisition of:
Naeem Brokerage 40,330,093 40,330,093

RECAP for financial investments  
(Recap holding previously) 10,251,294 10,251,294

Naeem for Shares and Bonds - 2,750,059

Naeem for Financial Investments 3,103,794 3,103,794

Etihad Capital (Unifund Capital for financial  
investments company) 473,327 473,327

54,158,508 56,908,567
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2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

US Dollars 
Cash on hand 16,700 62,870

Banks- Current accounts 1,596,200 10,272,202

Time deposits 100,000 1,555,542

1,712,900 11,890,614

Other Currencies
Cash on hand 121,861 27,999

Banks- Current accounts 2,849,020 3,303,757

Time deposits 114,989 -

3,085,870 3,331,756

Total cash on hand and at banks 4,798,770 15,222,370

11. CASH ON HAND AND AT BANKS

12. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

13. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 
THROUGH PROFITS OR LOSSES

14. PREPAID EXPENSES 
AND OTHER DEBIT BALANCES

15. PROVISIONS 

16. BANKS OVERDRAFT

Accounts receivables 10,510,545 12,638,496

Impairment of accounts receivables (340,191) (374,473)
10,170,354 12,264,023

-The accounts receivables balance at 31 December 2017 includes USD 1,913,105 which represents the value of pur-
chased shares in favor of purchasing with margin trading customers (31 December 2016 amounted to USD 1,826,398).

* The company has made a sale and lease back contract for the first and third floor - building B–16 in Smart village that 
the company owns it (note 10) with Tamweel For Mortgage.

** The company has made a sale and lease back contract for the second floor - building B–16 in Smart village that the 
company owns it (note 10) with Tamweel For Leasing.

***This balance consists of the unamortized amounts occurred from sale and lease back contract loss for the first, sec-
ond and third floors - building B–16 in Smart village.

*The company obtained an unsecured credit facility from the Export Development Bank of Egypt – Main branch 
amounting to LE 50 million to finance margin trade purchase operation and the facility amount was reduced to be LE 
35 million and the customers balance amounted to USD 1,913,105 as of 31 December 2017 (Note 11b).

**The company obtained a secured credit from the Arab African International Bank –Egypt amounting to LE 80 
million, Ensuring securities. The amount was increased to L.E. 200 million and guaranteed by the shares of Recap for 
Financial Investments Company and Egyptian Gulf Bank, with the aim of financing a securities portfolio investment. 

- The company obtained credit facilities at the amount of 7,400,000 AED from the Arab African International Bank, 
with the aim of financing the purchase of investments.

The interest rate applicable to the item “banks – credit facilities” reached 19.25%

Quoted shares in the stock market 4,497,663 1,572,022

Unquoted shares 668,237 44,160
5,165,900 1,616,182

Prepaid expenses 270,361 371,901

Employees’ loans and advances 31,629 143,446
Deposit with others 330,532 371,257

Unifund 20,639,936 18,104,252

Tamweel For Mortgage Company * 3,294,593 -
Tamweel For Leasing Company ** 1,074,929 -
Leasing contracts settlements*** 3,301,922 -
Advances to suppliers 1,214,524 7,153

Accrued revenue - 11,012

Etihad capital - 24,860

Naeem shares & bonds 17,775 -

Purchasing and selling clearing 668,594 3,642,285

Tax Authority 65,797 59,584

Notes receivables and cheques under collection 3,004,275 2,025,849

Other debit balances 3,723,298 3,407,639

37,638,165 28,169,238

Balance at beginning of year 87,757 291,464

Formed during the year - 21,406

Used during the year (33,725) (225,113)

Balance at end of the year 54,032 87,757

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)
Baraka Bank - 2,140,120

United Bank 945,021
Misr Bank 174,800 -

Export Development Bank of Egypt* 4,170,468 4,518,913

Arab African International Bank ** 9,089,062 9,072,008
14,379,351 15,731,041
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17. ACCRUED EXPENSES 
AND OTHER CREDIT BALANCES

18. ISSUED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

20. LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

Retentions 31,024 50,125

Employees rewarding loan 1,459,830 -
Accrued expenses 889,819 848,691

Central depository custody 42,219 42,531

Social insurance authority 15,681 20,104
Advances from customers 5,765,706 1,207,335
Risk guarantee fund 1,304 2,022
Tax Authority 334,681 857,530
Nile palm company 2,749,848 2,668,572
General authority for tourism development 1,260,305 897,473
Notes payable – short term 932,254 1,056,880
Accrued Revenue 17,528 65,340
Accrued coupons 16,129 16,090
Etihad Capital - 1,814
Other credit balances 988,132 3,351,746

14,504,460 11,086,253

The Company’s authorized capital amounts to USD 600 million and the initial issued and paid up capital at the date of 
incorporation amounted to USD 120 million divided over 120 million shares each with a par value of USD 1.

On 18 July 2006, the board of directors approved an increase in the issued and paid up capital from USD 120 million 
to USD 240 million and increase the shares from 120 million shares to 240 million shares each with a par value of 
USD 1 and the increase was fully subscribed in.

On 30 March 2008 the general assembly meeting agreed on board of directors’ proposal to declare 1 stock dividend 
for every 3 shares with total amount of USD 80 million, On 16 July 2008 the capital increase was registered at Misr for 
Central Clearing, Depository and Registry Company, Accordingly, issued and paid up capital amounted to USD 320 
million divided over 320 million shares each with a par value of USD 1.

On 11 November 2009 the board of directors decided to redeem 10660529 shares from treasury shares at their par 
value (Note 19), Accordingly the Company issued and paid up capital amounted to USD 309,339,471.

On 14 April 2011 extra ordinary general assembly meeting decided to redeem 5017471 shares of treasury shares with 
their par value (Note 19) accordingly issued and paid up capital becomes USD 304,322,000.

On 21 May 2012, according to the decree of the Extraordinary General Assemble Meeting, 10432529 shares of treas-
ury shares have been redeemed with their par value (Note 19), accordingly issued and paid up capital becomes 
USD 293,889,471.

On 6 August2013, according to the decree of the Extraordinary General Assemble Meeting, 10000000 shares of treas-
ury shares have been redeemed with their par value (Note 19), accordingly issued and paid up capital becomes  
USD 283,889,471.

On 16 January 2014 the articles no, 6 & 7 of the company’s article of association has been changed and the changes 
were highlighted in the commercial register on that date.

Pursuant to the decisions of the extraordinary general assembly held on 25 July 2016, which stipulated for reducing 
the issued and paid-up capital from US$ 283,889,471 to US$ 198,722,629.70, by way of reducing the nominal value 
per share from 1 US$ to US$ 0.70 while keeping the number of shares as it is, i.e. 283,889,471 shares. The aforesaid 
decisions further stipulated for transferring the reduced portion of capital, amounting to US$ 85,166,841.30, to the 
company’s reserves (general reserve), and for amending articles nos. (6 and 7) of the company’s articles of association.

On 22 June 2017 the ordinary general assembly meeting agreed on board of directors’ proposal to declare 1 stock div-
idend for every 10 shares outstanding with total amount of USD 19,872,263. On 9 October 2017 the capital increase 
was registered at Misr for Central Clearing. Depository and Registry, Accordingly, issued and paid up capital amount-
ed to USD 218,594,893 divided over 312,278,418 shares each with a par value of USD 0.70 and it was modified in the 
commercial register dated 14 September 2017.

 
19. TREASURY SHARES
According to the Company’s board of directors meeting held on 25 August 2008, the Company decided to purchase 
4.9% from Company’s shares. The Company had purchased 11115493 shares during 2008 and 2009 with amount of 
USD 7,428,235.

On 11 November 2009 the board of directors agreed to redeem 10660529 shares from treasury shares at par value 
(Note 18), The Company completed the appropriate procedures to redeem these shares of an amount of 7,219,991 
USD as at 30 March 2010 according to the decision of the extraordinary general assembly meeting held, The differ-
ence between the acquisition cost and the par value amounted to USD 3,440,538 is recognized in reserve available for 
distribution in equity at the balance sheet as of 31 December 2009.

According to the decree of Company’s Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting held on 14 April 2011, 5017471 treas-
ury shares and their acquisition cost is amounted to 2,654,357 and their par value is amounted to USD 5,017,471 has 
been redeemed (Note 18), and the difference between the share’s par value and their acquisition cost has been charged 
to reserve available for distribution in the equity in the Consolidated balance sheet, as of 31 December 2011 with the 
addition to the amount of USD 2,363,114, so that, for the reserve available for distribution as of 31 December 2011 
amounted to USD 5,803,652.

On 21 May 2012, according to the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting decision, 10432529 shares from treasury 
shares have been redeemed at par value (note 18) that had acquisition cost amount to USD 5,605,525 with par value 
amount to USD 10,432,529, The difference between the par value and acquisition cost amount to USD 4,827,004, so 
that the dividends available to distribution becomes USD 10,630,656 as of 31 December 2012.

On 13 November 2012, according to the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting decision, 5000000 shares from 
treasury share have been purchased with the amount of USD 1,608,173 for the purpose of financing rewarding system.

On 6 August 2013, according to the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting decision, 10000000 shares from treas-
ury shares have been redeemed at par value (note 18) that had acquisition cost amount to USD 

2,814,142 with par value amount to USD 10,000,000,The difference between the par value and acquisition cost 
amount to USD 6,671,109, so that the dividends available to distribution becomes USD 6,671,109 as of 31 
December 2013.

According to Board of Directors meeting of Recap for Investments Company (subsidiary company) held on 9 Novem-
ber 2015 it has been decided to purchase 2.75% from company’s shares and 3 million shares has been purchased with 
the amount of 9,000,000 EGP and on 19 June 2016 according to general assembly meeting 3 million shares has been 
executed with its par value that had acquisition cost amounted EGP 

9,000,000 and the difference between the share’s par value and their acquisition cost has been charged to reserve avail-
able for distribution in the equity

Notes payable 3,717,891 6,938
Credit accounts and other credit balances 2,804,644 3,492,697

6,522,535 3,499,635
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

22. FINISHED UNITS

23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

24. INVESTMENTS 
IN ASSOCIATES

25. GOALS AND METHODS OF CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

26. WORK IN PROGRESS 

27. AVAILABLE FOR 
SALE FINANCIAL 
INVESTMENTS 

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

The Company’s financial instruments are represented in financial assets and liabilities, the financial assets include 
cash on hand and at banks, account receivables, other debit balances and financial investments, the financial liabilities 
include bank overdraft, dividends payable and other credit balances.

The significant accounting policies applied for the recognizing of income and expenses are included in note (4) of the 
notes to the financial statements.

A-THE FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK OTHER THAN US DOLLAR
The foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial assets and liabilities and their related cash inflows 
and outflows in foreign currencies other than the US Dollar will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency exchange 
rates.

B- FAIR VALUE
According to the followed bases in the evaluation of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company, the fair value of 
the financial instruments is not materially different from their fair values at the financial statements date.

C- CREDIT RISK
The company settles its banking liabilities periodically to avoid unexpected financial losses.

D- LIQUIDITY RISK
The company is constantly examining financial situation of liquidity for all items of the statements as well as Taking all 
necessary precautionary measures to face any expected risks that may arise from the dealings of the company and lead 
to a problem in liquidity.

E- RISKS OF CASH FLOWS RELATED TO INTEREST RATE
Usually, future cash flows of financial instruments is prepared, in order to anticipate any changes that may occur in the 
future interest rate changes and this may lead to a change in the effective interest rate of the tool without any change in 
fair value.

*The company owns 2 garages in Casa Project at El-Sheikh Zayed – 6th of October City, which represents the stock of 
finished units represented for sale. 

* The company also owns 4 units within Palm Parks Project at 6th of October City. 

**This amount represents the covered costs related to the unsold portion of buildings no B109 & B16 at the first phase, 
as included in the balances of Severico For Real Estate Investment Company.

- The company warrants a letter of guarantee at the amount of AED 20,000,000 or the equivalent amount in US dol-
lars, as issued by the Arab African International Bank to Naeem for Stocks and Bonds Company in favor of the stock 
exchanges in Dubai and Abu Dhabi, with the aim of guaranteeing the brokerage activity also the company warrants 
a letter of guarantee with the amount of AED 26,000,000 or the equivalent amount in USD issued by Arab African 
International Bank in favour of Etihad Capital Company.

 The letter of guarantee was issued in return for the company undertaking to maintain at all times a minimum limit of 
coverage. Accordingly, the company pledged the shares owned thereby with the Egyptian Gulf Bank – head branch, 

The Company aims to achieve the maximum return on its capital through capital management in accordance with its 
related investments activities through its operations department that has a sufficient experience to manage company’s 
capital and to achieve the required return.

Capital finance of the group is made through shareholder’s equity, and borrowings through financial institutions are 
very limited.

* Available for sale investmnts represents the 49% ownership of Naeem for Real Estate Investment Company in Nile 
Palm EL Naeem for Real Estate Development, the total investment cost reached L,E 120,031,013 after revaluation 
on the date of purchase as per the study made by Baker Telly, accordingly RECAP company has purchased a share in 
Naeem for Real Estate Investment company, during the year 2009 the company has reclassified the Investments in 
Nile Palm EL Naeem for Real Estate Development stated in the Investments in related parties as of 31 December 2008 
to Investments held for trading as per the Egyptian accounting standards no (32) which requires to be presented sep-
arately from other investments. In February 2016, Professionals Financial Consulting Firm (licensed by the Egyptian 
Financial Supervisory Authority sub no. 448) was assigned to draw up a report on determining the fair value of the 
company’s shares. Where upon, it was found out that the estimated value of the company’s capital is 248,000,000 EGP, 
distributed to 991,000 shares

Apartments at Royal & Rakin projects * 5,866 4,165,620

Building B16- ground, first & second floor-Smart Village 782,158 5,188,209
First phase Buildings – Smart village** 4,592,143 5,441,734
4 apartments in Palm Parks 1,549,976 -

6,930,143 14,795,563

the fair value of which amounted to USD 55,439,935 on 31 December 2017

The accounts receivable balance as of 31 December 2017 includes USD 1,913,105 representing purchased stocks for 
margin trading customers (amounted to USD 1,826,398 as of 31 December 2016)

Naeem Shares & Bonds 1.00 % 121,900 -

Naeem Misr Investment Fund 35.72 % 608,918 -
Etihad Capital 31.20% 2,093,859 2,622,131

2,824,677 2,622,131

Ownership% 2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

County Share% 2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

Marsa alam land 1,502,049 1,457,654

First phase lands – smart village’ buildings and 
constructions 11,972,146 10,876,500

13,474,195 12,334,154

Nile Palm EL Naeem for Real 
Estate Development * Egypt 49% 18,899,545 18,899,545

18,899,545 18,899,545
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28. REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS 2017 (USD) 2016 (USD)

With indicate to the board of directors decision that had been held on 11 November 2015 which it was decided to can-
cel the finance lease contract with the International Company for Leasing which was contracted during 2011 related to 
the finance lease of building F4& B143,that resulted in acquisition of building B143 & F4 by Severico For Real Estate 
Investment Company amounted to 2,946,959 EGP with the purpose of maintaining building B14 and building F4 to 
be offered for leasing according to one or more operating lease contract.

As a result and according to item number (8) standard (34) of Egyptians accounting standards that related to invest-
ment properties, Severico For Real Estate Investment Company recognized building F4 and B134 in the real estate 
investment.

Referring to the decision of the Minister of Investment No. 110 for the year 2015 to issue the accounting standards, 
which resulted in a change in Standard No. 34 of the Egyptian Accounting Standards for Real Estate Investment and 
the derecognition of the fair value method. Accordingly, they were reclassified in accordance with transitional pro-
visions from the fair value method to the cost method, It was taken into consideration that the productive life of the 
original 50 years

29. GOING CONCERN
On 27 March 2013, according to the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting decision of Bedaya for Real Estate 
Investment Company (Subsidiary), it was accepted to freeze the company’s activities as of 31 March 2013, and the tax 
card has been retained by the company.

As per the decision from the board of directors of the Egyptian Financial Supervisory Authority (EFSA) session held 
on 23 July 2011, Naeem For Real Estate Financing (Subsidiary) has been prevented from performing its operations 
according to the article no, 42 of the real estate financing law no 148 of 2001 for not completing its issued capital.

30. TAX POSITION OF THE COMPANIES OF NAEEM HOLDING GROUP FOR INVESTMENTS

• NAEEM HOLDING COMPANY
 – Income tax: The Company was established at the free zone in Ismailia, and was exempted from the income tax 

in accordance with the Investment Guarantees and Incentives Law No. 8 of the year 1997. 

 – Salaries tax: Examination took place up to 31 December 2012, all taxes due were paid. The company pays all 
taxes obligation amounts on a regular basis. The Company’s books are in inspection for the years from 2013 till 
2016.

 – Stamp duty: The company was exempted from stamp duty tax till 13 May 2011 and starting that date it is 
affected by the stamp tax. the company fulfills its tax obligations as per the due dates. 

• NAEEM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY 
 – Associations of capital tax: the company’s records are currently being examined for the years from 2010 to 

2012, and no tax has yet fallen due on the company. The payable tax is delivered as per the tax return on due dates. 

 – Salaries tax: the company’s records are currently being examined for the years from 2005 to 2011, and the 
payable tax is delivered on due dates.

 – Stamp duty: the company’s records were examined as of 2005 up to 2014, and the due tax was paid. 

Cost 14,904,868 14,929,348

Depreciation (78368) (142,272)

Additions related to the acquisition of 2.46% of Severico 
Company - 117,792

Balance on 31 December 2017 14,826,500 14,904,868

• NAEEM REAL ESTATE FUND (NAEEM FOR INVESTMENT FUNDS COMPANY PREVIOUSLY)
 – Corporate tax: the company regularly draws up tax returns according to the provisions of law no. 91 of the year 

2005 and its executive regulations. The company wasn’t subjected to tax examination since the commencement of 
its activity till now. 

 –  Salaries tax: the company records was examined until 31 December 2012 and the due tax was paid, the compa-
ny fulfills its tax obligations as per the due dates.

 –  Stamp duty: the company wasn’t subjected to tax examination since the commencement of its activity till now.

 – Withholding tax: the company wasn’t subjected to tax examination since the commencement of its activity till 
now.

• NAEEM BROKERAGE COMPANY
 – Associations of capital tax: the company’s records were examined till the year 2010, and the due tax was paid. 

The payable tax is delivered as per the tax return on due dates. The company is not examined from 2011 till 2017. 
The company pays all taxes obligation amounts on a regular basis.

 – Salaries tax: the company’s records were examined till the year 2014, The company is not examined from 2015 
till 2017

 – Stamp duty: the company’s records were examined till the year 2013, and the due tax was paid.

• REACAP FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
 –  Associations of capital tax: the company was subjected to tax examination as of the commencement of its 

activity till the year 2004. The tax differences attributable to the examination years were adjusted, and no disputes 
have arisen in this regard. 

 – As for the years from 2005 through 2017:

• The company’s tax returns were approved according to law no. 91 of the year 2005, for the years from 2005 to 
2009. The company’s records were not examined for the subsequent years from 2010 to 2017. 

• The due tax is delivered on the basis of the tax return. 

 –  Salaries tax: the company’s records were examined till the year 2012, and the due tax was paid.

 –  Stamp duty: the company’s records were examined up to 31 December 2013. The tax differences attributable 
to the examination years were adjusted, and no disputes have arisen in this regard. The due tax is delivered on the 
basis of the tax return.






